
 
 
September 16, 2022 – Updated September 21, 2022 
 
To: Columbia Association Board of Directors  

CA Management  
  

From: Eric Greenberg, Board Chair  
 
The Columbia Association Board of Directors Meeting will be held on Thursday, 
September 22, 2022 beginning at 7:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
  

1. Call to Order 2 min. Page Nos. 

 (a) Announce the procedures being used to conduct the hybrid meeting   

 (b) Roll Call to determine Directors in attendance   

 (c) Announce that both audio and video of the meeting are being broadcast. 
Anyone using the link to the meeting on CA’s website will be able to see 
and hear the proceedings. 

  

 (d) Timekeeper – Alan Klein   

2. Announcement of Closed/Special Meetings Held/To Be Held 1 min.  

3. Approval of Agenda 1 min.  

4. Verbal Resident Speakout will be available to individuals who submitted the 
Resident Speakout form on CA’s website by 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 
September 21, 2022, Please note that, due to time constraints, it may be 
necessary to limit the number of people at Verbal Resident Speakout. 

  

5. Consent Agenda 2 min.  

 (a) Approval of Minutes – May 12, 2022 and July 28, 2022 BOD Meetings  3 – 12 

 (b) Approval of Closed Meeting Minutes – April 21, 2022; July 18, 2022; 
July 28, 2022; August 18, 2022; September 1, 2022 

  

6. Board Votes 60 min.  

 (a) Private Utility Easement Request – Level 3 Communications, Inc. (5 min.) 13 – 16 

 (b) Board FY 2024 Budget Strategic Priorities (30 min.) 17 – 27 

 (c) President/CEO Evaluation Process (20 min.) 28 – 29 

 (d) Sixpence Tot Lot Renovation (5 min.) 30 – 31  

7. Board Discussion 50 min.  

 (a) Financial Reports and Updates   

  (i) FY 2023 1st Quarter Financial Report (15 min.) 32 

  (ii) FY 2023 1st Quarter Financial Statements (15 min.) 33 – 57 

 (b) Dashboard (20 min.) 58 – 65  

8. Questions Only 20 min.  

 (a) President’s Report  66 – 69 

 (b) Report from the CA Representatives to the Inner Arbor Trust Board of 
Directors 

  
70 – 74 

 (c) Pre-Filed State and County Legislation   

9. Proposed New Topics 1 min.  

10. Chair’s Remarks 3 min.  

11. Adjournment – Anticipated Ending Time: Approximately 10:00 p.m.   



Upcoming Scheduled Hybrid Work Session and Meeting 
October 13, 2022 – Board of Directors Work Session – Beginning at 7:00 p.m. 

October 27, 2022 – Board of Directors Meeting – Beginning at 7:00 p.m. 
 

 

CA Mission Statement 
Engage our diverse community, cultivate a unique sense of place, and enhance quality of life 

 
 

CA Vision Statement 
CA creates and supports solutions to meet the evolving needs of a dynamic and inclusive 

community. 
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DRAFT 1 

Minutes of the 2 

ORGANIZATION MEETING OF 3 

COLUMBIA ASSOCIATION’S  4 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  5 

Held: May 12, 2022 6 
7 

To be approved: September 22, 2022 8 
9 

The organizational meeting of Columbia Association’s Board of Directors was held on Thursday, 10 
May 12, 2022. Participating in the meeting were Dick Boulton, Lakey Boyd, Brian England, Janet Evans, 11 
Kevin Fitzgerald, Eric Greenberg, Alan Klein, Bill Santos (joined at approximately 8:08 p.m.), Andrew Stack, 12 
Virginia Thomas, and Shari Zaret.  13 

14 
1. Call to Order: The Board of Directors Meeting was called to order at 7:40 p.m. by Columbia15 

Association (CA) FY 2022 Board Chair Janet Evans. Ms. Evans took roll call of the Board members16 
present and announced the procedures to be used to conduct the meeting.17 

18 
2. Approval of Agenda:19 

Action:  Ms. Thomas moved to approve the agenda, seconded by Mr. Greenberg. Hearing no objections,20 
the agenda was approved.21 

22 
3. Election of Chair and Vice Chair of the CA Board of Directors23 

Ms. Zaret nominated Mr. Greenberg to be Chair of the Board of Directors. Ms. Evans nominated Mr.24 
Stack to be Chair of the Board of Directors. Each candidate made a statement regarding his focus if25 
elected to the position.26 

27 
Paper ballots were distributed to the Board members at CA Headquarters. Ms. Loughran, board 28 
operations coordinator, described the process to send an electronic ballot to virtual attendees and to 29 
verify and collect the virtual votes. After consulting with Mr. Michael Aniton, CA general counsel, both 30 
Mr. Boulton and Mr. England received an electronic ballot. 31 

32 
Mr. Greenberg was elected Chair of the FY 2023 CA Board of Directors and conducted the rest of the 33 
Board meeting. 34 

35 
Mr. Fitzgerald nominated Ms. Thomas to be Vice Chair of the Board of Directors. Ms. Zaret seconded 36 
the nomination. Hearing no additional nominations and no objections, Ms. Thomas was elected Vice 37 
Chair of the FY 2023 CA Board of Directors. 38 

39 
Role of Parliamentarian 40 
The Board Chair noted he had served six months on CA’s Board of Directors and expressed a desire to 41 
elect a Parliamentarian to help the Board follow policies and procedures. Ms. Thomas made a motion to 42 
establish a role of Parliamentarian, seconded by Mr. Fitzgerald. 43 

44 
Discussion centered on the duties of the position. Mr. Greenberg envisioned someone who would help 45 
interpret CA’s charter, by-laws, policies, and procedures, and provide guidance if needed. Concern was 46 
expressed as to whether Board members would accept guidance of a Parliamentarian, and whether the 47 
Parliamentarian could remain impartial if a Board member was selected for that role. Some Board 48 
members felt the Parliamentarian should be a staff member rather than a Board member. It was also 49 
suggested that the Parliamentarian head a subcommittee to review the Board’s policies and procedures to 50 
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ensure they were accessible to the public, and to make recommendations regarding how the Board is 51 
functioning and what, if anything, needs to be changed. 52 

 53 
 In order to give the Board more time to discuss and define the role, Mr. Klein suggested the topic be 54 

tabled. Mr. Greenberg made a motion to table the discussion, seconded by Mr. Fitzgerald. The motion 55 
passed by a vote of 8-0-0. 56 

  For:         Messrs. England, Fitzgerald, Greenberg, Klein, and Stack; and Mmes. Evans, Thomas, and  57 
      Zaret 58 
  Against:   None 59 
  Abstain:   None 60 

 61 
4.   Appointments to Committees 62 

Audit Committee: Ms. Jackie Tuma, director of audit and advisory services, read the charter of the 63 
Audit Committee to clarify the role of committee members. Messrs. Fitzgerald, Santos, and Stack 64 
volunteered to be members. Hearing no other nominations, they were appointed to serve as members of 65 
the FY 2023 Audit Committee. 66 

 67 
 Risk Management Committee: Ms. Susan Krabbe, senior vice president/CFO, gave an overview of the 68 

responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee. Ms. Krabbe noted that the committee handles 69 
extremely sensitive and personal information, and conducts itself in accordance with agreements with 70 
third parties. Messrs. Boulton and Klein, and Ms. Evans volunteered to be members of the Risk 71 
Management Committee.  72 

 73 
 In accordance with her duties as a long-time officer of the corporation, senior vice president, and Risk 74 

Management Committee Chair, Ms. Krabbe requested that the Board of Directors not select Mr. Klein to 75 
serve on the Committee. Ms. Krabbe noted Risk Management Committee members have access to 76 
extremely sensitive, personal identifiable information of individuals, including Columbia Association 77 
employees and individuals holding memberships. The information is expected to be maintained and used 78 
in accordance with Columbia Association’s ethics policies. Ms. Krabbe felt Mr. Klein disqualified 79 
himself from consideration by his non-transparent and long-time refusal to abide by CA’s ethics policies 80 
for at least four years and other previous ethics violations.  81 

 82 
 Mr. Klein stated he never refused to conduct himself in accordance with those policies and never didn’t 83 

conduct himself in accordance with those policies. Rather, he refused to sign a statement saying that he 84 
would. He felt these were two different things. Mr. Klein also indicated his disagreement with how CA’s 85 
then Board of Directors handled his case. 86 

 87 
 Ms. Krabbe cited the behavior she observed and experienced from Mr. Klein; and felt it was her 88 

responsibility to speak up on behalf of the individuals trusting CA with these circumstances and the 89 
organizations expecting a certain code of behavior. Mr. Krabbe noted her decision to speak was an 90 
independent initiative and was quite difficult; and she felt it was important to make that clear to the 91 
Board. 92 

 93 
 Mr. Boulton expressed his personal opinion and vouched for Mr. Klein, stating that Mr. Klein was one 94 

of the most honorable people Mr. Boulton knew and one of the most ethical and moral people on CA’s 95 
Board. Mr. Boulton felt Mr. Klein’s supposed violation was taken totally out of proportion and 96 
characterized Mr. Klein as being totally trustworthy. Mr. Boulton was appalled at the way Mr. Klein was 97 
treated not only while Mr. Klein was on the Board, but after the Board, and when he was running for re-98 
election. 99 

 100 
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 Mr. England also supported what Mr. Boulton stated. Mr. England provided his personal opinion and 101 
said he had known Mr. Klein for many, many years and found the idea that Mr. Klein was unethical to 102 
be totally ridiculous. 103 

 104 
 Ms. Thomas stated she felt this was a difficult situation, in that someone was being condemned before 105 

they had done anything. She felt she could not go along with what was being discussed and urged the 106 
Board to move forward. 107 

 108 
 Mr. Greenberg noted there were three open positions on the Risk Management Committee and three 109 

volunteers for those positions. Ms. Evans stated that Mr. Greenberg, as Chair, needed to represent the 110 
organization and consider the concerns raised by Ms. Krabbe, CA’s CFO. Mr. Greenberg duly noted Ms. 111 
Evans’ concerns and asked if there was a motion to appoint Messrs. Boulton and Klein and Ms. Evans to 112 
the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Klein responded “so moved.” 113 

 114 
 Mr. Stack pointed out that the Chair of the Board is responsible for appointing Board members to 115 

committees, and that a motion was not needed. Board members may request to be appointed to a 116 
committee; however, it is the Chair’s decision to make the appointment. Mr. Greenberg took a roll call 117 
vote to get a sense of the Board regarding the combined appointment of Messrs. Boulton and Klein and 118 
Ms. Evans to the Risk Management Committee. The responses were as follows: 119 

 120 
  In Favor: Messrs. Boulton, England, Fitzgerald, Greenberg, and Klein; and Ms. Thomas 121 
  Against:  Mr. Stack and Ms. Evans 122 
  Abstain:  Mr. Santos and Ms. Zaret 123 

 124 
Messrs. Boulton and Klein and Ms. Evans were appointed to serve named as members of the FY 2023 125 
Risk Management Committee. 126 
 127 

5.   Selection of Columbia Association Representatives to the Inner Arbor Trust Board of Directors 128 
 Ms. Boyd gave an overview of the Inner Arbor Trust and its role in the community. Messrs. Boulton and 129 

Fitzgerald volunteered to serve as Columbia Association’s two representatives to the Inner Arbor Trust 130 
Board of Directors. Hearing no additional nominations and no objections, Messrs. Boulton and 131 
Fitzgerald were selected to the two open positions. 132 

 133 
4. Appointments to Committees (cont’d) 134 

Board Operations Committee: Mr. Greenberg read the dates of the four meetings of the Board 135 
Operations Committee in FY 2023. He will send a suggested list of the Board members serving on the 136 
BOC at each meeting date. If a Board member cannot serve on a designated date, s/he is asked to find a 137 
replacement.  138 
 139 
Board Member Liaisons to Advisory Committees 140 
Mr. Greenberg noted that in FY 2022 Board liaisons were needed to 11 advisory committees. Based on 141 
the decision made at the April 28, 2022 Board of Directors meeting, Board liaisons are needed for 7 142 
advisory committees in FY 2023. In response to a question from Mr. Klein, the remaining 4 advisory 143 
committees (Aquatics, Golf, Health and Fitness, and Tennis) are primarily staff-driven since they are an 144 
integral part of the programs and services offered by Columbia Association. Board attendance at their 145 
meetings is encouraged, and a list of meeting dates, agendas, and approved meeting minutes will be 146 
made available. 147 
 148 
Board liaisons were named to the following advisory committees: 149 

 150 
  151 
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Topic-Focused Advisory Committees 152 
Climate Change & Sustainability Advisory Committee  Ginny Thomas 153 
Columbia Art Center Advisory Committee    Janet Evans 154 
International & Multicultural Advisory Committee   Alan Klein 155 
Watershed Resident Advisory Committee    Shari Zaret 156 
 157 
Community Engagement-Focused Advisory Committees 158 
Millennial Advisory Committee     Bill Santos 159 
Senior Advisory Committee     Ginny Thomas 160 
Teen and Middle School Advisory Committee   Eric Greenberg 161 
 162 

6.   Reappointment of Officers of Columbia Association 163 
 Ms. Thomas moved that the Board of Directors adopt the resolution reappointing the following slate of 164 

officers of Columbia Association. Mr. Fitzgerald seconded the motion. Hearing no objections, the slate 165 
of officers as presented was approved.  166 
 167 
The officers are: 168 
 Lakey Boyd   President/CEO 169 
 Susan Krabbe   Vice President and Secretary 170 
 Mary Lynn Schwartz  Treasurer 171 
 Don Van Deusen   Assistant Secretary 172 

 173 
7.   List of Dates for BOD Work Sessions and Meetings in FY 2023 174 
 Mr. Greenberg reviewed the list of dates for Board of Directors work sessions and meetings in FY 2023. 175 

Ms. Thomas moved that the Board accept the dates for Board work sessions and meetings in FY 2023, 176 
seconded by Mr. Stack. 177 
 178 
Ms. Thomas asked if the advisory committees knew they were scheduled to present their annual reports 179 
on May 26, 2022. Ms. Boyd confirmed they were aware of the date and all had been invited to the 180 
meeting. Presentations from the 11 advisory committees in FY 2022 are expected to comprise the 181 
majority of the meeting time. 182 
 183 
Mr. Klein asked if the four advisory committees which will not have a Board liaison in FY 2023 would 184 
give an annual report in the future. Ms. Boyd confirmed they would not, unless the Board chose to invite 185 
them to do so. She also confirmed that approved minutes from their meetings would be available. 186 

 187 
 Hearing no objections from the Board, the list of dates for BOD work sessions and meetings in FY 2023 188 

was accepted. 189 
 190 
 Closing Remarks from Mr. Greenberg Prior to Adjournment 191 
 Mr. Greenberg offered closing remarks prior to the adjournment of the meeting. 192 
 193 
8. Adjournment  194 
 Mr. Klein made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Ms. Thomas. The meeting adjourned at 195 
 8:35 p.m. 196 
 197 
Respectfully submitted, 198 
 199 
Janet F. Loughran 200 
Board Operations Coordinator 201 
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Draft Minutes of the  1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 2 

Held July 28, 2022 3 

4 
To be approved September 22, 2022 5 

6 
Columbia Association’s Board of Directors held a hybrid meeting on Thursday, July 28, 2022. Present were Chair 7 
Eric Greenberg, Vice Chair Virginia Thomas, and members Dick Boulton, Lakey Boyd, Brian England, Janet 8 
Evans (virtual), Kevin Fitzgerald (virtual), Alan Klein (virtual), and Bill Santos. Andrew Stack and Shari Zaret 9 
were not in attendance. 10 

11 
1. Call to Order12 

The Board of Directors Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chair Eric Greenberg. Mr. Greenberg13 
announced the procedures to be used to conduct the meeting and took a roll call of the Board members present.14 

15 
2. Announcement of Closed/Special Meetings Held/To Be Held16 

CA’s Architectural Resource Committee held a closed meeting on July 11, 2022. Members present were Deb17 
Bach, Karina Caico, Susan Sloan, and Carole MacPhee. The vote to close the meeting was 4-0-0.18 

19 
The closed meeting was authorized under the Maryland Homeowners Association Act, Md. Code, Real 20 
Property §11B-111(4)(iv), Consultation with staff personnel, consultant, attorneys, board members, or other 21 
persons in connection with pending or potential litigation. The meeting was closed from 1:03 p.m. until 22 
2:33 p.m. to discuss new and on-going covenant cases. 23 

24 
The Risk Management Committee held a closed meeting on July 14, 2022. Members present were Susan 25 
Krabbe, Lakey Boyd, Dick Boulton, Janet Evans, and Alan Klein. All Risk Management Committee meetings 26 
are closed; therefore, no vote to close was taken. 27 

28 
The closed meeting was authorized under the Maryland Homeowners Association Act, Md. Code, Real 29 
Property §11B-111(4)(iv), Consultation with staff personnel, consultant, attorneys, board members, or other 30 
persons in connection with pending or potential litigation or other legal matters. The meeting was closed from 31 
6:00 p.m. until 6:54 p.m. to review and discuss the general liability self-insurance claims, and matters related to 32 
the program. 33 

34 
The Audit Committee held a closed meeting on July 20, 2022. Members present were James Young, Timothy 35 
Redmond, Andrew Stack, William Santos, and Kevin Fitzgerald. The vote to close the meeting was 5-0-0. 36 

37 
The closed meeting was authorized under the Maryland Homeowners Association Act, Md. Code, Real 38 
Property §11B-111(4)(i),(iv) – Discussion of matters pertaining  to employees and personnel; and Consultation 39 
with staff personnel, consultants, attorneys, board members, or other persons in connection with pending or 40 
potential litigation or other legal matters. The meeting was closed from 8:05 p.m. until 9:25 p.m. for 41 
CliftonLarsonAllen’s review of internal control-related matters with the Audit Committee, and other 42 
communication with the Office of Audit and Advisory Services. 43 

44 
3. Approval of Agenda45 

Action: Ms. Thomas moved to approve the agenda, seconded by Mr. Santos. Mr. Greenberg noted that Howard46 
Hughes Corporation requested that Item 6(d), Easement Request-Lakefront North Road B Ingress and Egress,47 
be suspended, pending Howard County agency comments. Mr. Klein made a motion to remove Item 6(d) from48 
the Board meeting agenda, seconded by Ms. Thomas. Hearing no objections, the item was removed. Mr.49 
Greenberg asked if there were any objections to the amended agenda. Hearing none, the amended agenda was50 
approved.51 
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4. Verbal Resident Speakout  52 
(a) Christiana Mercer Rigby – Kings Contrivance – Expressed her gratitude for Columbia and Columbia 53 

Association, noting her appreciation for the Columbia Art Center and her neighborhood swim team 54 
 55 

(b) James Blackwood – Member, Hickory Ridge Board of Directors – Spoke about a new play structure for the 56 
Sixpence Tot Lot 57 

 58 
(c) Sharon Boies – Protect Our Streams - Spoke about the Lake Elkhorn Stream Mitigation project 59 
 60 

5.  Consent Agenda  61 
(a) Approval of Minutes – June 23, 2022 Board of Directors Meeting – Approved by consent 62 
(b) Approval of Appointments to the Climate Change & Sustainability Advisory Committee – Approved by 63 

consent 64 
 65 

6.  Board Votes 66 
(a) Budget Schedule – FY 2024 67 

Action: Mr. England moved to approve the Budget Schedule for FY 2024, seconded by Ms. Thomas. Ms. 68 
Thomas asked if the Board should see the survey prior to its distribution. No action was taken on the 69 
comment. 70 
 71 
Action: Mr. Greenberg called the question to approve the Budget Schedule for FY 2024, and took a rollcall 72 
vote. The Budget Schedule for FY 2024 was approved by a vote of 8-0-0. 73 
For:        Messrs. Boulton, England, Fitzgerald, Greenberg, Klein, and Santos; and Mmes. Evans and 74 

Thomas 75 
Against: None 76 
Abstain: None 77 
 78 

 (b) Board Goals and Objectives for the President/CEO for FY 2023 79 
Action: Mr. Boulton moved to (a) strike bullet 4, “Provide continuous education for the Board on 80 
issues/topics important to ensure effective evidence based on governing leadership,” under Goal 1, 81 
“Improve Board Relations and Communications;” and (b) move bullet 5, “Inform the board in a timely 82 
manner of significant outreach to community stakeholders,” under Goal 1 to Goal 4, “Improve 83 
Communication and Community Engagement.” Mr. England seconded the motion. 84 
 85 
Discussion focused on whether bullet 5 belonged under Goal 1 or Goal 4, and whether the President/CEO 86 
should provide continuous education for the Board on governing leadership. 87 
 88 
Mr. Greenberg called the question and repeated the motion on which the Board was voting (i.e., strike 89 
bullet 4 under Goal 1 and move bullet 5 under Goal 1 to Goal 4.) Mr. Greenberg took a rollcall vote and the 90 
motion passed by a vote of 5-3-0. 91 
For:        Messrs. Boulton, England, Fitzgerald, and Santos; and Ms. Evans 92 
Against: Messrs. Greenberg and Klein; and Ms. Thomas 93 
Abstain: None 94 
 95 
Action: Ms. Evans moved to strike item 3, “Educational issues affecting Columbia including School 96 
Redistricting to support neighborhood schools,” under Goal 3, “Advocate for Columbia’s villages, 97 
communities, and key partners.” Mr. Santos seconded the motion. 98 
 99 
Discussion focused on whether CA should provide input to the Howard County Public School System on 100 
school-related issues. However, many Board members felt the President/CEO should not be evaluated on 101 
this issue. 102 
 103 
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Action: Mr. Greenberg called the question and took a rollcall vote. The motion passed by a vote of 7-1-0. 104 
For:        Messrs. Boulton, Fitzgerald, Greenberg, Klein, and Santos; and Mmes. Evans and Thomas 105 
Against: Mr. England 106 
Abstain: None  107 
 108 
Action: Mr. Boulton moved to add an objective (bullet) to Goal 1 stating the President/CEO would meet 109 
regularly with the Chair and Vice Chair on dates scheduled by the Board Chair. Mr. England seconded the 110 
motion.  111 
 112 
Ms. Evans asked that the word “regularly” be defined. Ms. Thomas suggested two meetings per month, 113 
with the possibility of an additional meeting if needed for a “crisis” situation. Mr. Boulton accepted Ms. 114 
Thomas’ suggestion as a friendly amendment to his motion. 115 
 116 
Mr. Santos stated that the Board had worked on the President/CEO’s goals over a period of time, and 117 
compiled the list of proposed goals to be voted upon at the July 28 Board meeting. He was not thrilled with 118 
adding an additional objective to a goal at such a late time. Ms. Evans agreed with Mr. Santos’ comments. 119 
 120 
The President/CEO stated that she had not been asked about adding this topic as a potential objective. She 121 
pointed out that the Board convenes twice a month; and, in the off weeks when the agenda packets are 122 
prepared and posted, the President/CEO and CA senior staff spend a significant amount of time preparing 123 
for the upcoming Board meeting [or work session] every week. Ms. Boyd also cited the extra time needed 124 
for preparation when agendas were changed on short notice. 125 
 126 
The President/CEO expressed concern that the time needed for position duties outside of Board relations 127 
could make it problematic to achieve this objective. 128 
 129 
The President/CEO felt that one meeting per month with the Board Chair and Vice Chair was appropriate 130 
to address any topics needing to be discussed, and reiterated her commitment to contacting the Board Chair 131 
should his input be needed in an emergency situation. 132 
 133 
The Board Chair stated that the recent Board training session emphasized the need for improved 134 
communications, and he felt that efforts to achieve this between the Board and staff was needed. 135 
 136 
Action: Mr. Greenberg called the question and took a rollcall vote. The motion was approved by a vote of 137 
6-2-0. 138 
For:  Messrs. Boulton, England, Fitzgerald, Greenberg, and Klein; and Ms. Thomas 139 
Against: Mr. Santos and Ms. Evans 140 
Abstain: None 141 
 142 
Action: Ms. Thomas moved that the Board approve the Board of Directors goals and objectives for the CA 143 
President/CEO for FY 2023, as amended. Mr. Fitzgerald seconded the motion. Mr. Greenberg took a 144 
rollcall vote, and the motion was approved by a vote of 6-2-0. 145 

 For:         Messrs. Boulton, England, Fitzgerald, Greenberg, and Klein; and Mme. Thomas 146 
Against:  Mr. Santos and Ms. Evans 147 
Abstain:  None 148 
 149 

(c) Easement Requests – Lakefront North Private Pathway, Multi-Use Pathway, and Public Fire 150 
Hydrant Easements 151 
Action: Mr. Boulton moved to approve the easement requests, seconded by Ms. Thomas. Mr. Greenberg 152 
took a rollcall vote, and the motion passed by a vote of 8-0-0. 153 
For: Messrs. Boulton, England, Fitzgerald, Greenberg, Klein, and Santos; and Mmes. Evans and 154 

Thomas 155 
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Against: None 156 
Abstain: None  157 

 158 
 (e) Lake Elkhorn Stream Restoration Board Subcommittee Recommendations  159 

Action: Mr. England put forth two motions from the Lake Elkhorn Stream Restoration Board 160 
Subcommittee.  161 
 162 
The first motion was that CA’s President/CEO arrange a work session between WSSI (Wetland Studies and 163 
Solutions, Inc.) and CA’s Board of Directors in August 2022 to give CA’s Board an update on the issues 164 
raised by the Maryland Department of the Environment (MDE) regarding the Lake Elkhorn Stream 165 
Restoration project.  166 
 167 
The President/CEO objected to the motion, noting that there was no mention of it in the supporting 168 
documents. Mr. Greenberg did not move forward on Ms. Boyd’s objection and stated there was no second 169 
for the motion. Ms. Thomas then seconded the motion. 170 
 171 
Ms. Evans moved to table the motion and not schedule a work session in August. She also objected to 172 
including the motion with no prior notification, and noted that some information on the supporting 173 
document, especially dates, was outdated. Mr. Boulton seconded the motion. No discussion was held. 174 
 175 
Action: Mr. Greenberg took a rollcall vote. The motion to table the request for a work session in August 176 
passed by a vote of 5-3-0. 177 
For: Messrs. Boulton, Fitzgerald, Klein, and Santos; and Ms. Evans 178 
Against: Messrs. England and Greenberg; and Ms. Thomas 179 
Abstain: None  180 
 181 
Action: Mr. England moved that the President/CEO instruct staff to communicate with the Lake Elkhorn 182 
Stream Restoration Subcommittee and provide the flowchart. Ms. Thomas seconded the motion. 183 
 184 
Ms. Evans noted that the recommendations from the subcommittee had not been voted upon by the Board 185 
of Directors, and also reiterated that the dates in the recommendations were old. Ms. Evans suggested that, 186 
if the subcommittee wanted a flowchart, it needed to provide a date in the future on which the Board could 187 
vote. 188 
 189 
Mr. England then made a motion to change “July 7th 2022” in the supporting document to August 7, 2022. 190 
 191 
Discussion then centered on defining the process subcommittees use to bring information to the Board for 192 
discussion, review, and action. 193 
 194 
As a point of information, Ms. Boyd reviewed commitments and actions taken by staff on this topic. At the 195 
June 9, 2022 work session, Ms. Boyd committed to creating a folder for Board members housing relevant 196 
documents associated with the Lake Elkhorn Stream Restoration project. The folder was created on June 197 
22. Ms. Boyd referred to the email she sent to the Board Chair on June 22 in response a message from Mr. 198 
Greenberg stating he had received the recommendations from the Board subcommittee and was requesting 199 
Ms. Boyd “to do these things.” In her email, Ms. Boyd explained that subcommittees need to bring their 200 
recommendations to the Board for discussion, review, and action. If the Board approves the 201 
recommendations, then staff can move forward with their implementation.  202 
 203 
Ms. Boyd assumed the information in that message was shared with the other Board members, but it 204 
appeared that did not occur. Ms. Boyd noted Mr. England had approached her at a public meeting in an 205 
unconstructive manner, and asked why she was ignoring him and not providing the flowchart. She 206 
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reiterated to the Board that was not the case; staff could not move forward until the Board approved the 207 
subcommittee recommendations. 208 
 209 
When asked how long it would take to prepare the flowchart, Ms. Boyd said it could be available by the 210 
September 8 work session. 211 
 212 
Action: Mr. Boulton offered a friendly amendment to replace July 7, 2022 with September 8, 2022 in Mr. 213 
England’s second motion. Mr. England accepted the amendment. 214 
 215 
Ms. Thomas expressed concerns with the September 8 date, noting that there might be major touchpoints in 216 
July and August between staff and the other organizations working on the project. She asked for a 217 
guarantee that no major decisions would be made in July and/or August without the Board being informed. 218 
The President/CEO provided that assurance. 219 
 220 
Mr. Greenberg called the question and took a rollcall vote. The motion passed by a vote of 8-0-0. 221 
For: Messrs. Boulton, England, Fitzgerald, Greenberg, Klein, and Santos; and Mmes. Evans and 222 

Thomas 223 
Against:  None 224 
Abstain:  None  225 

 226 
7. Board Discussion 227 

(a) Financial Reports 228 
 (1) FY 2022 Audited Financials 229 
       CA received an unqualified opinion, the highest rating, from CliftonLarsonAllen, CA’s external 230 

auditors. 231 
 232 
 (2) FY 2022 Fourth Quarter Financial Report 233 
       Ms. Lynn Schwartz summarized the report which can be found on CA’s website. 234 
   235 
(b) Dashboard 236 
 Ms. Schwartz reviewed the Dashboard metrics as of April 30, 2022, and Mr. Burns gave a brief summary 237 

of the Net Promoter Scores (NPS). 238 
 239 
(c) Board Budget Strategy and Policy 240 
 Mr. Klein would like the Board to consider what services offered by CA should be paid by assessment 241 

dollars versus what services should be paid by the users of those services. Mr. England would like to 242 
discuss the tot lot policy. 243 

 244 
(d) Pre-Filed State and County Legislation 245 

None at this time. 246 
 247 

8. Questions Only 248 
 (a) President’s Report   249 

Ms. Thomas noted the proliferation of bamboo in Columbia, and asked how costly it is to remove it and if 250 
CA had talked to the village Boards about specifying in the architectural guidelines that bamboo could not 251 
be planted. Mr. Mattey reported that CA is developing recommendations regarding planting various species 252 
of invasive plants. 253 

 254 
 Mr. Klein asked about the impact of supply chain and inflation challenges on CA’s budget and activities. 255 

Ms. Boyd characterized them as substantial and unpredictable. 256 
 257 
 258 
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9. Proposed New Topics 259 
 Ms. Thomas asked that CA’s encroachment policy, with some specific examples, be placed on the Agenda 260 

Topics Log. 261 
 262 
10. Chair’s Remarks 263 
 Mr. Greenberg commented on the Board Training Session held on July 21, calling it a helpful experience for 264 

the Board members. He also noted the topic of communication improvements was referenced several times in 265 
the session. 266 

  267 
11. Adjournment 268 

Action: Ms. Thomas made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Mr. England. Hearing no objections, the meeting 269 
adjourned at 8:59 p.m.   270 

      271 
 272 

Respectfully submitted, 273 
 274 
Janet F. Loughran 275 
Board Operations Coordinator 276 



Date:

The businesses in the Lakefront will benefit from the new communication lines. Business and 

residents in the immediate adjacent areas may notice construction activities during initial 

installation.

Additional Notes:

CA staff recommends approval, subject to final staff review of the documents.

Briefly describe who will be impacted and how they will be impacted:

CA's Lot 9A runs uninterrupted, paralleling Little Patuxent Parkway. There are no alternative 

configurations for tying in utilities from Little Patuxent Parkway to the adjacent commercial 

Lakefront properties without crossing CA property.

Proposed Easement Location:

Purpose of Proposed Easement:

Alternatives to Proposed Easement:

Easement Request Form

9/8/2022

Private utility easement for the purposes of installing and maintaining underground conduits and 

fiber optics

Easement Grantee:

Project Name:

Level 3 Communications

Private Utility Easement

Town Center Lakefront - CA Open Space Lot 9A

AGENDA TOPIC 6(a)



Level 3 Communications Utility Easement
Vicinity Map

The Mall
in

Columbia

Lake
Kittamaqundi

Easement Area
CA Open Space

Lot 9A

Whole
Foods
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EASEMENT 

 

 The Columbia Association (“CA”) Board of Directors (the “Board’) has considered 
whether to grant an easement, subject to staff final review, to Level 3 Communications, Inc. 

relating to a private utility easement on CA Open Space Lot 9A in Town Center, a copy of which 
is attached to this Resolution (the “Easement’). The Board makes the following findings with 

respect to the Easement: 

  1. The execution and performance of the Easement is taken exclusively for 

the promotion of the social welfare of the people of Columbia; 

  2. The Easement is expected to produce civic betterments or social 

improvements consisting of improved public amenities; and 

  3. The Easement produces benefits for the people of Columbia that are 

necessary incidents to the accomplishment of CA’s purpose to promote the social welfare of the 
people of Columbia. 

 Having made these findings, the Board hereby authorizes the execution of the Easement 
on behalf of CA. 

BE IT SO RESOLVED  

___________, 2022 

   



September 15, 2022 

To: Columbia Association Board of Directors 
Lakey Boyd, President/CEO 

From: Susan Krabbe, Senior Vice President and CFO 
Lynn Schwartz, Director of Finance/Treasurer 
Dan Burns, Vice President of Community Programs and Services 
Dennis Mattey, Vice President of Community Operations 

Re: Board FY24 Budget Discussion – September 22, 2022 

At its September 8, 2022 work session, the CA Board of Directors had its second discussion related 
to the FY24 budget, focused on prioritizing strategic objectives and desired outcomes for FY24, in 
accordance with the previously Board-approved FY24 budget process and schedule. 

The purpose of the Board budget discussions scheduled for September are for the Board to 
determine the high-level, strategic objectives for the FY24 budget, giving staff the initial guidance we 
need to begin to produce income, expense and capital expenditure data projections for FY24 for the 
Board to use as the process progresses. At meetings in October, November and December, the 
Board will further refine that guidance into what staff will use to produce a draft budget document that 
will be issued to the Board and community in January 2023. 

CA staff’s assessment of the Board’s September 8 discussion is that Board members appeared 
to agree with one another that maintaining the facilities, programs and services offered in FY23 
will be the Board’s primary strategic priority for the FY24 budget.  

In addition to the back-up material provided for the September 8 work session, we have also 
attached the approved budget schedule. As a reminder, staff will need the Board’s FY24 
strategic priorities confirmed on September 22 in order to meet the schedule. 

Thank you for your consideration and attention to this critical process. 

AGENDA TOPIC  6(b)



September 1, 2022 

To: Columbia Association Board of Directors 
Lakey Boyd, President/CEO 

From: Susan Krabbe, Senior Vice President and CFO 
Lynn Schwartz, Director of Finance/Treasurer 
Dan Burns, Vice President of Community Programs and Services 
Dennis Mattey, Vice President of Community Operations 

Re: Board FY24 Budget Discussion 

At its September 8, 2022 work session, the CA Board of Directors is scheduled to have its second 
discussion related to the FY24 budget focused on prioritizing strategic objectives and desired 
outcomes for FY24. This scheduled discussion is in accordance with the previously Board-approved 
FY24 budget process and schedule. 

The purpose of the Board budget discussions scheduled for September are for the Board to 
determine the high-level, strategic objectives for the FY24 budget, giving staff the initial guidance we 
need to begin to produce income, expense and capital expenditure data projections for FY24 for the 
Board to use as the process progresses. At meetings in October, November and December, the 
Board will further refine that guidance into what staff will use to produce a draft budget document that 
will be issued to the Board and community in January 2023. 

The following resources may assist you in preparing for that discussion: 

 The previous CA Board meeting discussion for agenda item, “Board Budget Strategy

and Policy” on July 28, 2022, which included these two comments.

o Consider fully in the budget process what items should be paid for by annual

charge payers versus what items should be paid for by users.

o Consider funding for tot lots.

 The Board-approved five-year strategic plan (attached) that applies to FY 2024, the last

year of the plan.

Also, as you know, the first community and village survey related to FY24 budget priorities was 

opened in mid-August. As of September 1, we have received approximately 200 responses. We 

are going to extend the survey through the holiday weekend, and will post a summary of 

responses for you by close of business Tuesday, September 6. 
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CA STRATEGIC PLAN EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The 2019 CA strategic plan set forth in this Executive Summary is the culmination of a 

seven-month planning process and covers the years 2019 through 2024.  

This Executive Summary provides the complete mission, vision, goals and objectives along 

with a summary of the strategic planning process. The complete strategic planning report 

includes detailed information gathered, outcomes from each phase, and considerations for 

future planning efforts. That report is available from CA upon request. This summary is 

organized into the following sections: 

1. CA mission, vision, goals, and objectives.

2. Strategic planning process.

2019 STRATEGIC PLAN MISSON, VISION, GOALS & OBJECTIVES 

Mission:  Engage our diverse community, cultivate a unique sense of place and enhance 

quality of life. 

Vision:  CA creates and supports solutions to meet the evolving needs of a dynamic and 

inclusive community. 

Strategic Priority: Identity  

Goal: Significantly improve CA’s visibility as a valued partner in enriching the quality of life 

and community cohesion/connections.  

Objective 1: Develop a baseline assessment of CA’s awareness, understanding, and 

perception in the community by the end of (FY) Q1 2020. Use the assessment to identify 

shortfalls and opportunities.  

Objective 2: Increase CA’s awareness and value perception by 15%. 
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Objective 3: Create true partnership with village boards (i.e. form work groups, host town 

halls). 

Objective 4: Drive community cohesion via events sponsored by CA. 

Objective 5: Improve communications from CA to community and partners. 

Objective 6: Monitor CA’s reputation and recognition in the community by surveying the 

community every 2-3 years and developing a subsequent plan for optimization and 

improvement. The first survey should be conducted toward the end of FY2020 to assess 

communication effectiveness following baseline. 

Strategic Priority: Resource Stewardship  

Goal: Create systems to align physical assets and financial resources to meet CA’s strategic 

goals and mission. 

Objective 1: Create a system to assess the physical condition of CA’s assets by 4.30.20. 

Objective 2: Create a system to evaluate community impact of CA’s assets. 

Objective 3: Create a scorecard combining assessments and evaluation to prioritize capital 

and budget resources/investments by 8.31.21.  

 Action Step A: Identify opportunities to provide greater access for all

residents.

 Action Step B: Develop assessment tool to prioritize community needs

and opportunities against available budget resources.

 Action Step C: Develop a process to identify assets that should be acquired,

modified, or consolidated.

Objective 4: Create a 5-10 year capital investment plan based on the outputs above by 

4.30.22. 
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Objective 5: Determine quality of revenue (consistency, dependability) needed to support 

programs and services by 4.30.23. 

 Action Step A: Create a zero-based budget review (that includes a

competitive analysis to other similar organizations).

 Action Step B: Develop 10-year forecast.

Strategic Priority: Environmental Sustainability  

Goal: Advance Columbia as a leader in environmental sustainability in Maryland.  

Objective 1: Maintain and advance CA’s climate change mitigation and adaptation efforts. 

 Action Step A: CA will advocate for and support access to multi-modal

public transportation in the community.

 Action Step B: CA will advance best procurement and waste management practices

that increase source reduction, increase the use of recycled content materials,

increase recycling/composting rates, and reduce single use plastic consumption.

 Action Step C: CA will continue efforts to reduce energy consumption and support

clean energy through its existing solar farm and procurement of renewable energy

credits.

 Action Step D: CA will work to reduce fossil fuel consumption associated with its

vehicle and equipment fleet and encourage similar practices in its contractors.

 Action Step E: CA will conduct a Columbia-wide climate change vulnerability

assessment to identify key climate risks affecting its operations, property, and public

safety.

Objective 2: Advance sustainable land use practices and improve the quality of streams, 

ponds, and lakes.  

 Action Step A: CA will refine its use of best practices for fertilization, weed, and

pest management so as to maintain aesthetically pleasing open space while reducing

the potential harmful impacts to humans and wildlife.
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 Action Step B: CA will enhance its open space management practices to support 

native species of grasses, increase rainwater retention, support pollinators, and 

increase carbon sequestration.  

 Action Step C: CA will advocate for advanced storm water management practices 

in developments in and around Columbia.  

 Action Step D: CA will reduce stream erosion and flooding by deploying advanced 

stream stabilization techniques and reducing upstream runoff volume by promoting 

best management practices for impervious surface area.  

 

Objective 3: Educate and connect citizens to CA’s open spaces and best practices for 

sustainability. 

 Action Step A: CA will partner with villages to develop opportunities for resident 

engagement and education.  

 Action Step B: CA will develop engagement programs and materials that help 

advance community sustainability and connection to open space.  

 Action Step C: CA will work to more effectively promote its activities and 

performance associated with improving the environmental sustainability of its 

operations and land management practices.  

Strategic Priority: Leadership Development  

Goal: Increase participation among a demographically diverse community to serve in 

leadership roles on CA advisory committees, community groups, and the CA Board.  

 

Objective 1: Outreach to cultural and diverse community. 

 Action Step: Annually conduct at least one new outreach initiative.  

Strategic Priority: Advocacy  

Goal: Advocate on issues that are key to Columbia’s values and are key to our future as a 

unique, diverse, master planned community.  

 

Objective 1: Conduct an annual evaluation of CA priorities that considers all stakeholders.  

 

Objective 2: Coordinate advocacy efforts with Village Boards where appropriate.  
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Objective 3: Monitor issues in the following categories for advocacy:  

 New town zoning  

 Environment  

 Land use  

 Alternative housing  

 Smart development  

2019 CA STRATEGIC PLAN PROCESS 

The process incorporated six phases organized around the following objectives: 

 Developing a concise plan that details a clear set of priorities, responsibilities, and 

metrics where appropriate. 

 Engaging stakeholders from throughout the Columbia area. 

 Engaging the Board and senior staff members in thoughtful dialog regarding the 

strategic issues, goals, and priorities throughout the process. 

 Adopting a strategic plan via Board vote. 

Phase 1 – Context 

This phase served as preparation by reviewing key organizational documents such as By-

laws, Charter, Deed, policies, progress reports, financial activities, and Board meeting reports 

and minutes from the past two years. 

Phase 2 – Gather and explore information from a wide range of perspectives. 

Data was gathered through multiple channels: 

 Surveys. 

 In-person meetings with 52 stakeholders, Board members, and staff. 

 Published information on regional demographic and economic trends and national 

trends regarding master planned communities.  

This information was compiled into a Phase 2 Report and used by Board and staff in 

identifying key strategy issues, determining goals, and setting a future strategic direction for 

CA for the next five years and beyond. 

Phase 3 – Assess information and identify strategic issues for the next five years and beyond. 

An all-day session was held on March 9, 2019 with Board and senior leadership team to 

frame strategic issues the Columbia Association faces in the next five years and beyond. 



 

9/9/19 6 

Phase 4 – Engage stakeholders for feedback on strategic issues identified. 

CA published initial drafts of goals, objectives, mission & vision on its website and 

requested input. Board members also sought out opinions from residents in their villages.  

Phase 5 – Outline Strategic Plan with CA Board. 

A second all-day session was held on March 30, 2019 to consider input from stakeholders 

and prioritize strategic priorities for the next five years. A draft strategic plan document was 

prepared for Board and staff and distributed to stakeholder group representatives for review 

and input. 

Phase 6 – Complete final Strategic Plan document for Board approval. 

A final draft of mission, vision, goals & objectives was drafted, reviewed, and approved by 

the Board. 
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MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  September 6, 2022 
 
TO:  Columbia Association Board of Directors 
  Lakey Boyd, President/CEO 
 
FROM:  Dannika Rynes, Sr. Manager of Communications & Media Relations 
 
Subject: Summary of Community Survey Results for FY2024 budget 
 
 
The Communications team has been working with the Office of the President, the Chief 
Financial Officer and the Director of Finance to begin gathering public input on the FY2024 
budget process. The initial online survey was aimed at understanding the priorities of our 
community and how CA should be evolving to meet the changing needs of our residents. 
 
This first community-wide survey related to the FY2024 budget was deployed via 
SurveyMonkey and opened on Wednesday, August 17. The results detailed in this memo reflect 
the feedback up to Tuesday, September 6. We had a total of 300 respondents for this initial 
survey. 63.3% of survey respondents said this was their first time engaging with the 
budget process. 
 
Respondents ranked the areas CA covers (with 1 being the most important) in the following 
priority order: 

1. Community Programs & Services (39.42%) 
2. Community Operations (30.99%) 
3. Capital Improvements (21.4%)  
4. Village Associations (6.17%) 
5. Communications & Marketing (3.32%)  

 
The next sections of the survey asked participants to rate the importance of a wide range of CA 
programs, services and initiatives on a scale of 1 to 5.  
 
 When asked about programs and services managed under Community Programs & 

Services, the highest rated were outdoor and indoor aquatics facilities and fitness clubs 
with School Age Services also ranking high. Columbia MD Archives, International 
Exchange & Multicultural Programs, and golf facilities/programs averaged the lowest 
rankings. 



MEMORANDUM 
DATE:  September 6, 2022 
TO:  Columbia Association Board of Directors; Lakey Boyd, President/CEO 
FROM:   Dannika Rynes, Sr. Manager of Communications & Media Relations 
SUBJECT: Summary of Community Survey Results for FY2024 budget 
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 Respondents ranked pathways and green space/park space highest among Community 

Operations initiatives while logistical support for community events ranked lowest. 
 
 Among communications, marketing and community engagement efforts, 

respondents ranked community events/programs (like Lakefront Live) and user interface 
(i.e. registration for classes and programs) highest, with social media rated as less of a 
priority.  

 
 In terms of capital improvements, renovations/major maintenance on existing 

pathways/bridges and renovations/major maintenance on existing facilities were rated as 
the most important. New construction or new facilities were seen as the least important.  

 
There were also opportunities for individuals to answer a handful of optional, open-ended 
questions about what kind of new construction or facilities they’d like to see CA pursue, what CA 
should add and/or update and what CA should consider changing, scaling back or discontinuing 
to allow for updates and additions to happen. The desire for maintenance of our existing 
facilities and protection of our green spaces over new construction was a strong theme. 
Many respondents also said that improving the CA website and making the registration 
process easier to navigate should be a priority.  
 
From our analysis, the key takeaways from this survey are as follows: 
 
 Aquatics facilities, open space and pathways continue to be some of the most valued 

assets we provide for our community. 
 The most common sentiment was to invest in the facilities we do have and to maintain 

our abundance of green space. 
 New construction was not popular, with the exception of comments regarding additional 

pickleball courts.  
 Equity (through an internal and external lens) was mentioned numerous times. 

Respondents want to know how we are making CA accessible to all income levels and 
marginalized communities. They want to see a Board of Directors that is representative 
of Columbia’s diverse population.  

 There was a strong call for CA to continue to be open and transparent throughout the 
budget process.  

 For the majority of respondents, this survey was their first time participating in the budget 
process.  

 



 

CA FY2024 Budget Process
Welcome to the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024  
budget process, a chance for you to provide 
feedback on CA’s priorities and investments!  
In line with CA’s commitment to transparency 
and fiscal stewardship, we welcome everyone 
to engage with the Board of Directors and 
provide input ahead of the budget’s approval.

You’re welcome to get involved at any point, 
but details get more defined and the scope 
narrows as the Board moves forward with  
the process. The earlier you get  
involved, the more impact you can 
have on that final budget.

September 8
Board work session

Discuss

August 17-31
Online Feedback

September 22
Board meeting

Vote
Priorities

November 10
Board meeting

Discuss

October 27
Board meeting

Discuss

November 1
Special info session

LISTEN

January 26
Board meeting

LISTEN

December 8
Board meeting

Vote
Draft Capital Allocations and 
Fixed/Changeable Expenses

October 27-
November 3
Online Feedback

January 23-27
Online Feedback

February 9
Board work session

Discuss

February 23
Board meeting

Approve 
Final Budget

All meetings are hosted virtually and recorded for easy access.
Visit ColumbiaAssociation.org/budget for more information  
on the process and how to get involved.
 



Draft Evaluation Policy

During the final quarter of the fiscal year the Board shall prepare an evaluation of the
President/CEO which shall be used to inform the bonus that the President/CEO shall receive.

Section 1: Process

1. The President/CEO shall provide the Board of Directors a self evaluation

2. The voting members of the Board shall meet in closed session to review and discuss the
policy and procedure steps for the CA President’s annual evaluation including:

a. The President’s Contract
b. The Evaluation Forms
c. The Board approved annual Goals and Objectives for the President/CEO
d. The Columbia Association’s Strategic Plan

3. Each voting member shall individually fill-out their own copy of the evaluation form(s) to:
a. Provide a score for each goal in the Board approved annual Goals and

Objectives for the President/CEO. These scores shall be provided anonymously
to maintain confidentiality

b. Provide for each goal, a list of areas where the President/CEO made progress
c. Provide for each goal, a list of potential areas for growth

4. The voting members of the Board shall then meet in a second closed session to review
the scores to determine the bonus as follows:

a. All scores shall be counted anonymously during this meeting
b. An overall Board score for each goal shall be computed in accordance with

Section 2
c. The bonus shall be computed based the overall Board score for each goal in

accordance with Sections 3
d. The Chair will provide the Board a draft summary of the responses from 2b and

2c, which the Board will discuss and then vote to approve or ammend

5. The Chair and Vice Chair shall meet with the President/CEO to present the Board’s final
evaluation and feedback along with any bonus awarded.

6. The Board shall also conduct a mid-year evaluation, which will not impact the bonus.
The mid-year evaluation may use a more streamlined process as deemed appropriate by
the Board.

AGENDA ITEM 6(c)



Section 2: Scoring of Goals

Each voting member shall provide one of the following scores for each goal they evaluate.

1. Excellent Progress (E)
2. Satisfactory Progress (S)
3. Insufficient Progress (I)

A Board member may choose to not score a goal if they feel they have insufficient information or
the goal is no longer relevant.

A quorum, consisting of more than half of the voting Board members providing a score for a
goal, is required for that goal to be evaluated. If this threshold is not met then that goal shall be
reported in the final evaluation as Not Evaluated and have no impact on the Bonus calculation.

The Board’s overall score for each evaluated goal shall be reported in the CEO’s final evaluation
as follows:

1. If more than half of members who scored the goal scored it as Excellent
Progress (E), then that goal shall be reported as Excellent Progress (E)

2. If more than half of members who scored the goal scored it as Insufficient
Progress (I), then that goal shall be reported as Insufficient Progress (I)

3. In all other cases, the goal shall be reported as Satisfactory Progress (S)

Section 3: Bonus Calculation

The bonus shall be calculated based on the number of goals where the Board’s overall score is
reported as Excellent Progress (E) and the number of goals where the Board’s overall score is
reported as Insufficient Progress (I). The following table provides the bonus calculation:

Number of the Goals where the
Board’s overall score is:

Excellent Progress (E)

0 1 2 or more

Insufficient
Progress (I)

0 25% Bonus 50% Bonus 100% Bonus

1 No Bonus 25% Bonus 50% Bonus

2 or more No Bonus No Bonus No Bonus



Hickory Ridge Community Association 
 

6175 Sunny Spring, Columbia, Maryland 21044  •  410 730-7327  
hickoryridgevillage.org •  thehawthorncenter.org    

 
 
 

Columbia Association Board of Directors  
6310 Hillside Court, Suite 100  
Columbia MD 21046  
 
RE: Sixpence Tot Lot 
 
Dear Members of the Columbia Association Board of Directors: 
 
The Hickory Ridge Village Board met on Monday, September 12th and the Sixpence Tot Lot was on 
the agenda. The Board voted unanimously in favor of the following motion: 
 

The Hickory Ridge Village Board supports the reallocation of funds for the potential 
consideration of installing the “Twin Towers” play equipment at the Sixpence Tot Lot. The 
Hickory Ridge Village Board would also like the CA Board to consider natural play 
equipment alternatives to the Gametime play equipment like the Bears Playgrounds - One 
Hundred Acre Woods. 

 
The Sixpence Tot Lot, before its closure in early 2020, was a Tot Lot that was used daily. The 
extended closure has impacted all those who used the play equipment multiple times per week.  
The level of neighborhood interest is evidenced by the residents who have presented during 
Resident Speak Out and the high response rate to a survey in June 2021 about replacing the tot 
lot. One hundred thirty-four residents took the time to share their thoughts on the play 
equipment replacement and, overwhelmingly, they asked for a comparable structure that served 
2–12-year-olds. 
  
The Sixpence Tot Lot not only serves the community, it builds community.  We ask that you find 
funding for the potential consideration of Twin Towers play structure at the Sixpence Tot Lot. 
  
Thank you, 
  
The Hickory Ridge Village Board 



September 16, 2022

To: Columbia Association Board of Directors
Lakey Boyd, President/CEO

From: Dennis Mattey, Vice President of Community Operations

cc: Susan Krabbe, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Subject: Bears Playgrounds Equipment

CA staff has reached out to Bears Playgrounds and is waiting to hear back from them regarding
their play systems. Staff will evaluate the Bear Playgrounds system pending receipt of
information delivered to CA.
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September 16, 2022 

To: 

From: 

cc: 

Subject: 

Members of the Columbia Association Board of Directors 
Lakey Boyd, President/CEO 

Susan Krabbe, Senior Vice President and CFO 

Jackie Tuma, Director of Audit and Advisory Services 

First Quarter FY 2023 Financial Report 

The Audit Committee will review the FY23 First Quarter Financial Report during their 
September 19, 2022 meeting. The committee members are expected to recommend 
that the Board of Directors be presented with the FY23 First Quarter Financial Report. 
The link to the Financial Report has been posted as back-up material to the September 
22, 2022 Board meeting. To access the report online, go to https://
www.columbiaassociation.org/about-us/financials/financial-reports/; then scroll toward 
the bottom of the page, select “Quarterly Financial Reports to the Board,” then select 
“FY23 First Quarter” from the list of financial reports posted. 

If you have any questions, please let me know. 



Columbia Association, Inc. 

Financial Statements 

July 31, 2022 and 2021 
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1 

Columbia Association, Inc. 

Index 

  Page 

Financial Statements                      

Statements of Financial Position 2 

Statements of Activities 3 

Statements of Functional Expenses 4 

Statements of Cash Flows 6 

            Notes to Financial Statements   7 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Columbia Association, Inc. 
  

Statements of Financial Position 
July 31, 2022 and 2021 

(in Thousands) 
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Assets

2022 2021

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 47,778$            39,872$            
Emergency cash reserves 5,133                2,000                
Accounts receivable, net 11,963              11,576              
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,235                1,355                
Risk management fund 6,527                6,638                
Workers' compensation fund 3,555                3,602                
Property, facilities and equipment, net 126,889            131,047            
Intangible assets, net 287                   287                   

Total assets 204,367$          196,377$          

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities
 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 15,122              15,477              
Deferred revenue 6,890                5,494                
Refundable advance 523                   -                    

22,535              20,971              

Term debt
Term loans, net of deferred financing costs 30,575              35,221              
Capital lease obligations 574                   711                   

Total term debt 31,149              35,932              

Total liabilities 53,684              56,903              

Net assets 

Net assets without donor restrictions 150,683            139,474            
With donor restrictions -                    -                    

Total net assets 150,683            139,474            

Total liabilities and net assets 204,367$          196,377$          

 



Columbia Association, Inc. 
  

Statements of Activities 
July 31, 2022 and 2021 

(in Thousands) 
 

 

3 
See Notes to Financial Statements 
 

 
2022 2021

Revenue
Annual charge 46,358$            44,973$            
Community programs and services 7,400                5,521                
Communications and marketing 19                     62                     
Community operations 82                     69                     
Village community associations 41                     -                    
Interest income and other 73                     23                     
Unrealized loss on marketable securities 2                       3                       

Total revenue 53,975              50,651              

Net assets released from restriction 51                     -                    
54,026              50,651              

Expenses
Program services:

Community programs and services 9,380                7,465                
Communications and marketing 533                   462                   
Community operations 3,951                3,436                
Village community associations 1,205                1,309                

Total program services 15,069              12,672              

Supporting services:
Administrative 2,487                2,284                

Total expenses 17,556              14,956              

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 36,470              35,695              

Changes in net assets with donor restrictions - time and purpose

Grant restricted to School Age Services 18                     -                    

Grant restricted to Teen Center 33                     -                    

Satisfaction of program restrictions (51)                    -                    

Change in net assets with donor restrictions -                    -                    

Total change in net assets 36,470              35,695              

Net assets, beginning of quarter 114,213            103,779            

Net assets, ending of quarter 150,683$          139,474$          
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Community 
Programs and 

Services 
Communications 

and Marketing
Community 
Operations

Village 
Community 

Associations Total Program Administrative Total

Personnel Expenses  $                 5,253  $                    427  $                 1,467  $                        1  $                 7,148  $                 1,447  $             8,595 

Operating 
Supplies/Expenses

                       488                        145                        137                           -                          770                          33                    803 

Technology 
Supplies/Expenses

                         37                          36                            1                           -                            74                        396                    470 

Collection and 
Treasury Expenses

                         71                          74                           -                             -                          145                          21                    166 

Fees                        237                          60                        662                          22                        981                        268                 1,249 

Comm. Assoc. 
Annual Charge 
Share Grant

                          -                             -                             -                          855                        855                           -                      855 

Temporary Funding 
and Grants Expense

                          -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                        - 

Rentals                        299                          60                          32                           -                          391                        115                    506 

Utilities                        381                            1                          22                            1                        405                          74                    479 

Insurance and Taxes                        238                            1                          95                          14                        348                          59                    407 

Repairs and 
Maintenance

                       646                        -                          379                          32                     1,057                            2                 1,059 

Depreciation                     1,570                          10                     1,055                        260                     2,895                          64                 2,959 

Non-Operating 
Exp/Contingencies

                      (258)                           -                         (258)                           -                    (258)

Allocations                        418                       (281)                        101                          20                        258                            8                    266 

Total functional 
expenses

 $                 9,380  $                    533  $                 3,951  $                 1,205  $               15,069  $                 2,487  $           17,556 
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Community 
Programs and 

Services 
Communications 

and Marketing
Community 
Operations

Village 
Community 

Associations Total Program Administrative Total

Personnel Expenses  $                 4,002  $                    400  $                 1,271  $                 5,673  $                 1,195  $             6,868 

Operating 
Supplies/Expenses

                       288                        100                        134                            4                        526                          49                    575 

Technology 
Supplies/Expenses

                         24                            2                           -                             -                            26                        349                    375 

Collection and 
Treasury Expenses

                         50                          32                           -                             -                            82                          17                      99 

Fees                        269                            9                        478                          26                        782                        356                 1,138 

Comm. Assoc. 
Annual Charge 
Share Grant

                          -                             -                             -                          944                        944                           -                      944 

Temporary Funding 
and Grants Expense

                          -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                        - 

Rentals                        306                          70                          33                           -                          409                        134                    543 

Utilities                        329                            3                          25                            3                        360                          71                    431 

Insurance and Taxes                        216                            1                          83                          13                        313                          55                    368 

Repairs and 
Maintenance

                       505                          23                        249                          38                        815                            2                    817 

Depreciation                     1,618                          10                     1,045                        259                     2,932                          54                 2,986 

Non-Operating 
Exp/Contingencies

                      (497)                       (497)                           -                    (497)

Allocations                        355                       (188)                        118                          22                        307                            2                    309 

Total functional 
expenses

 $                 7,465  $                    462  $                 3,436  $                 1,309  $               12,672  $                 2,284  $           14,956 
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2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets 36,470$            35,695$            
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets

   to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation expense and amortization 2,959                2,986                
Bad debt expense 1                       20                     
Amortization of deferred financing costs 10                     11                     
Loss (gain) on disposal of fixed assets 2                       (5)                      
Unrealized  loss (gain) on marketable securities (3)                      (4)                      
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable (8,623)               (9,249)               
Prepaid expenses and other assets (1,002)               (38)                    
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,132)               (1,480)               
Deferred revenue 1,095                1,624                
Refundable advance 523                   -                    

Net cash provided by operating activities 30,300              29,560              

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments held by trustees                (2)                      (2,038)               
Proceeds from maturities of investments held by trustees 14                     24                     
Purchase of property, facilities and equipment (2,120)               (1,239)               
Proceeds from the sale of equipment 7                       5                       
Proceeds from the sale of intangible assets -                    -                    

Net cash used in investing activities (2,101)               (3,248)               

Cash flows from financing activities
Net new lease/principal payments on capital lease obligations (46)                    (46)                    
Term loan principal payments (1,187)               (1,151)               

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (1,234)               (1,197)               

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 26,965              25,115              

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning 25,946              16,757              

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, ending 52,911$            41,872$            

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information 
Cash paid during the quarter for interest 263$                 302$                 
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Note 1 - Organization and summary of significant accounting policies 
 

Organization 
Columbia Association, Inc. (the "Association") is a nonprofit membership corporation, 
incorporated under Maryland law. It develops and operates recreation and community facilities; 
provides community programs and assistance; and maintains and develops park land and 
open space in Columbia, Maryland. The Association is governed by an eleven-member Board 
of Directors comprised of the Association's President and ten members elected by residents of 
each of the ten village community associations. Each village community association has its 
own election requirements and manages its own election according to its governing 
documents. 

Use of estimates in preparing financial statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
The Association defines cash equivalents as all highly liquid investments with maturities of 
ninety days or less when acquired, except when such investments are held by trustees for the 
risk management and workers' compensation funds. 

Emergency cash reserves 
In April 2021 the Board of Directors approved the establishment of an emergency cash 
reserves policy and designated an initial balance of $2,000.  As of April 2022, the Board 
approved additional emergency cash reserves of $3,133, bringing the reserve balance as of 
April 30, 2022 to $5,133.  The policy requires the Board to approve use of the funds only for 
emergency purposes and increases to the fund balance.   

Accounts receivable 
Accounts receivable consist principally of membership fees receivable, which are 
uncollateralized and generally have a term of one year.  Accounts receivable also include 
annual charge balances, which are collateralized by the related property. 

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced by a valuation allowance. The reserve 
for abatements and allowance for doubtful accounts is based on management's assessment of 
the collectability of specific accounts and the amount of abatements property owners will 
receive on their property assessment. 

Risk management fund 
Under the Association's risk management program, self-insured claims for general liability risks 
are accrued based on the best estimate of the ultimate cost of both asserted claims and 
unasserted claims from reported incidents and estimated losses from unreported incidents. 
Such estimates are reviewed by counsel. The Association is funding the risk management 
program under a trust fund arrangement, which currently provides for funding as actuarially 
determined by independent actuaries.   
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Workers' compensation fund 
The Association has a self-insurance program for workers' compensation. Under this program, 
the Association has a workers' compensation fund for its estimate of the ultimate cost of both 
asserted and unasserted claims from reported workers' compensation incidents and estimated 
losses from unreported incidents. Claims and fund expenses are paid directly out of the 
workers' compensation fund. The program includes a trust deposit escrow account in the name 
of Maryland Workers' Compensation Commission for the benefit of the Association. The 
investment level of the fund is periodically reviewed by the State of Maryland Workers' 
Compensation Commission and by independent actuaries. 
 
Investments held by trustees 
Investments held by trustees consisting of money market funds and U.S. Government 
mortgage bonds and treasuries are stated at fair value and are reflected in the risk 
management fund and workers' compensation fund on the statements of financial position. 

Property, facilities and equipment, net 
Land includes approximately 3,600 acres of land that has been contributed to the Association 
since the establishment of the community of Columbia and is recorded at zero value. The 
contributed land is subject to a zoning ordinance limiting its usage to public or community 
usage. Costs of parks, lakes and related permanent land improvements are accounted for as 
land and are not depreciated because they have an indefinite useful life. Facilities, equipment 
and land improvements that have a limited life are stated at cost and are depreciated using 
the straight-line method.  

Assets  
Estimated 
useful lives 

   
Building and recreational facilities  10 to 40 years 
Land improvements  5  to 25 years 
Furniture, equipment and other  3  to 10 years 
   
   

Expenditures are capitalized if the expenditure results in a new asset with a useful life of at 
least two years and meets the monetary threshold or represents an addition to an existing 
asset that materially improves or extends the asset beyond its original intended function or 
increases the useful life by at least two years. The monetary threshold is defined as $2.5 for a 
single item except for certain equipment or livestock, which should be capitalized if a single 
item costs at least $1.5. This includes an expenditure that is for a group of identical or 
coordinating items with a total cost of at least $2.5 that are purchased together and replaced 
at the same time. 

Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets requires that an impairment 
loss be recognized only if the carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable from its 
undiscounted cash flows and that the measurement of any impairment loss be the difference 
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset. There were no impairment losses 
recognized during the periods ended July 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
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Intangible assets 
Goodwill relates to the purchase of land. The annual charge resulting from this transaction 
exceeds the carrying amount of the goodwill and therefore no adjustment to carrying value is 
deemed necessary.  

Deferred financing costs 
Expenses related to the term loans are being amortized using the effective interest method 
over the term of the respective debt. Accumulated amortization as of July 31, 2022 and 2021 
was $193 and $148, respectively. Amortization expense for the periods ended July 31, 2022 
and 2021 was $10 and $11, respectively. Estimated future amortization expense is as follows: 

Year ending
April 30, 

Amortization 
expense

2023 30$                   
2024 33                     
2025 26                     
2026 19                     
2027 12                     
2028 and thereafter 7                       

127$                 

 

   
 

Net assets 
The Association is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to two classes of net assets: those without donor restrictions and those with donor 
restrictions. 
 
Net assets without donor restrictions are those net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed restrictions.  
 
Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor or grantor stipulations that limit the use 
of their contributions. Donor restrictions may result in time or purpose restricted net assets, 
where the use of contributions is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by 
the passage of time or when used for specified purposes. Donor restrictions may also result 
from endowed net assets, where the donor stipulations neither expire by the passage of time 
nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by the Association’s actions. The Association had no 
net assets with donor restrictions at July 31, 2022 and 2021. 



Columbia Association, Inc. 
  

Notes to Financial Statements 
July 31, 2022 and 2021 

(in Thousands) 
 

10 
 

 

 Revenue recognition 
 

Annual charge  
Annual charge revenue consists of annual charges for which future services are not required 
and are recognized as revenue when the annual charges are levied and due. The annual 
charge is based on $0.68 per $100 of assessed value. The Association’s annual charge is 
billed annually on or about July 1, and the payment is due within 30 days. Annual charge 
revenue is recognized when billed.  

Grant contributions 
The Association recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an 
unconditional promise to give; or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional 
promises to give; that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of 
return are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met. 
 
Community Programs and Services 
Community Programs and Services revenue is primarily comprised of memberships, tuition 
and enrollment, fees and sales. 

Membership - Memberships are recognized as revenue on a pro rata basis during the 
membership period with unearned fees recorded as deferred revenue. Memberships 
are generally one year, starting on an agreed upon date, or month to month.  

Tuition and Enrollment -     
School Age Services - The School Age Services (SAS) Programs are offered in 
certain elementary schools and middle schools. Tuition payments are received for 
10 months from September through June and revenues are recognized ratably as 
services are provided. Unearned tuition payments are reflected as deferred 
revenue on the statement of financial position. Services during the period ended 
July 31, 2022, were limited due to the pandemic, and an inability to recruit qualified 
staff, which resulted in some school locations operating at less than capacity. 

Camps - Camps are normally held during the months of June through August. 
Camp registration fees are recognized as income when received. Camp enrollment 
fees are recognized ratably over the camp duration. Unearned revenue is reflected 
as deferred revenue on the statement of financial position. Three camps were held 
in the summer of 2022. 

Fees - This category contains income from daily admission and guest passes to 
various facilities and programs. Fees for tournaments, leagues, driving range use and 
lessons are also included. The Association recognizes revenue when services are 
provided.  

Sales - The majority of this category is comprised of sales of merchandise at the 
Association’s facilities, such as the Art Center, pro shops at the golf courses, tennis 
clubs, etc. The Association recognizes revenue at the time of sale. 
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Deferred Revenue  
Deferred revenue is comprised of the following as of July 31: 

 

2022 2021

Membership fees 5,437$        3,952$        
School Age Services 342             560             
Camps 82               60               
Other 1,029          922             

Total Deferred Income 6,890$        5,494$         

 

Rental expense  
Rental expense is recognized over the lease terms as it becomes payable according to the 
provisions of the respective leases. However, if the rental expense varies from a straight-line 
basis, future rental expense including scheduled and specific rent increase and/or rent 
concession are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.  

Advertising 
The Association uses advertising to promote its programs among the audiences it serves. The 
costs of advertising are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotion costs totaled $126 
and $85 for the periods ended July 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

Income taxes 
The Association is exempt under Section 501(c) (4) of the Internal Revenue Code. However, 
the Association is subject to federal and state taxes on unrelated business income, if any. Net 
unrelated business income was $0 for the periods ended July 31, 2022 and 2021. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses  
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the statements of activities. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among 
the programs and supporting services that benefit from those costs. The expenses that are 
allocated include interest expense which is allocated proportionally based on property and 
equipment. Costs that can be identified with particular programs or support functions are 
charged directly to the program or function including salaries and related expenses which are 
charged based on time and effort. 
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Reclassifications 
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation. 
These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported change in net assets or net asset 
amounts. 
 
Subsequent events 
The Association evaluated subsequent events through September 14, 2022, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 

 
Note 2 - Accounts receivable 

Accounts receivable are comprised of the following as of July 31: 

 
2022 2021

Membership fees 4,610$        3,307$        
Annual charges 7,580          8,847          
Other 431             60               

Total accounts receivable 12,621        12,214        
Less reserves for abatements and allowance 
for doubtful accounts 658             638             

11,963$      11,576$      

 
 
 

Note 3 - Investments and other assets 

Risk management fund 
Investments included in the risk management fund are held by a Trustee and are combined in 
a portfolio, which consists of the following as of July 31: 

 

Cost Fair value Cost Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents 5$                      5$                      2,021$               2,021$               
Government debt securities 6,591                 6,522                 4,622                 4,612                 
Accrued interest -                     -                     5                        5                        

6,596$               6,527$               6,648$               6,638$               

2022 2021
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Workers' compensation fund 
Investments included in the workers' compensation fund are held by a Trustee in a 
portfolio, which consists of the following as of July 31: 

 

Cost Fair value Cost Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents 3,555$               3,555$               3,602$               3,602$               

3,555$               3,555$               3,602$               3,602$               

2022 2021

 

Note 4 - Fair value measurements  

In determining fair value, the Association uses various valuation approaches within the fair 
value measurement framework. Fair value measurements are determined based on the 
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. 

Professional guidance establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that 
maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by 
requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. The levels within the 
hierarchy based on the reliability of inputs are as follows: 

 Level 1 - Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities 
in active markets; 

 Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities or identical  
assets or liabilities in less active markets, such as dealer or broker markets; and 

 Level 3 - Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant 
inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable, such as pricing models, discounted 
cash flow models and similar techniques not based on market, exchange, dealer or broker-
traded transactions. 
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The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at 
fair value and their classification in the valuation hierarchy.  

 
Debt securities  
Debt securities consisting of government agency debt obligations are generally valued at the 
most recent price of the equivalent quoted yield for such securities, or those of comparable 
maturity, quality and type.  

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value by classification within 
the fair value hierarchy as of July 31, 2022: 

Quoted prices
in active

markets for
identical assets

(Level 1)

Significant
other

observable
inputs

(Level 2) Total

Government debt securities* -$                  6,522$              6,522$              

Fair value measurements using

 

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value by classification within 
the fair value hierarchy as of July 31, 2021: 

Quoted prices
in active

markets for
identical assets

(Level 1)

Significant
other

observable
inputs

(Level 2) Total

Government debt securities* -$                  4,612$              4,612$              

Fair value measurements using

 
*Government debt securities are included in the risk management fund and workers' 
compensation fund as discussed in Note 3.  
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Note 5 – Liquidity 

Columbia Association, Inc. financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial 
position date for general expenditures are as follows as of July 31, 2022 and 2021: 
 

2022 2021

Total assets at quarter end 204,367$     196,377$   

Less:

Refundable advance 523              -             
Emergency cash reserves 5,133           2,000         
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,235           1,355         
Risk management fund 6,527           6,638         
Workers' compensation fund 3,555           3,602         
Property, facilities and equipment, net 126,889       131,047     
Intangible assets, net 287              287            

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for 
general expenditures within one year  $       59,218  $    51,448 

  
 

Columbia Association has $59,218 and $51,448 of financial assets available within one year as of 
July 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, on the statement of financial position date to meet cash 
needs for general and/or emergency expenditures. This consists of cash of $47,255 and $39,872 
and net accounts receivable of $11,963 and $11,576 as of July 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
Accounts receivable consist of annual charge balances, which are collateralized by the related 
property. Accounts receivable also include membership fees receivable, which are 
uncollateralized and generally have a term of one year. None of the identified available financial 
assets are subject to any contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general 
expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position; however, the June 25, 2020 
loan documents do require that the Association maintain a minimum cash balance of $3,000. See 
Notes 8 and 9. 
 
In addition, in the event of unanticipated liquidity needs, the Association has a line of credit in the 
amount of $20,000 of which $-0- was committed as of July 31, 2022. See Note 8. 
 
The Association‘s operating activity generates positive cash flow of approximately $17,529 based 
on a five year average of cash provided by operating activities. The cash is used to fund capital 
projects, debt service and the emergency cash reserves when approved by the Board.  Any 
additional funds needed for approved expenditures are obtained from line of credit borrowings.  
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Note 6 - Property, facilities and equipment, net 

Property, facilities and equipment consist of the following as of July 31, 2022: 

Cost basis
Accumulated 
depreciation Book value

Land 6,533$            -$                 6,533$        
Parks, lakes, and related improvements 102,677          53,930             48,747        

Buildings and recreation facilities 140,009          78,787             61,222        
Leasehold improvements 5,686              3,778               1,908          
Equipment and vehicles 29,557            23,755             5,802          
Other 2,680              3                      2,677          
Property, facilities and equipment 287,142$        160,253$         126,889$    

 
 
Property, facilities and equipment consist of the following as of July 31, 2021: 

 

Cost basis
Accumulated 
depreciation Book value

Land 6,533$            -$                 6,533$        
Parks, lakes, and related improvements 101,326          51,761             49,565        
Buildings and recreation facilities 138,781          74,548             64,233        
Leasehold improvements 5,555              3,229               2,326          
Equipment and vehicles 29,420            23,093             6,327          
Other 2,067              4                      2,063          
Property, facilities and equipment 283,682$        152,635$         131,047$    

 
 
Note 7 - Annual charge 
 

The principal source of the Association's revenue is an annual charge, based on a rate (68 
cents per $100 of assessed valuation in both fiscal years 2023 and 2022) established annually 
by the Board of Directors, on all of Columbia's assessable real property. The Association's net 
assessed value is 50% of the State's assessed phased-in cash value subject to a 10% annual 
increase cap; however, the Board of Directors capped the increase at 3.5% for fiscal years 
2023 and 2022. 
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The net assessed value for assessment years beginning July 1 was as follows: 

2022  $13,861,020

2021  $13,460,941  
 

 
Note 8 - Line of credit 

The Association entered into a revolving line of credit with a bank on June 25, 2020, which, 
under the loan agreement, is limited to borrowings of $20,000 beginning September 15, 2020 
with the condition that the Association maintains a $3,000 cash balance. Outstanding 
balances bear interest at LIBOR plus 1.15%. The line of credit matures on June 1, 2023. 
Additionally, the Association pays a quarterly unused commitment fee, which was reduced 
from 25 to 18 basis points on February 14, 2022.   

The Association had $-0- outstanding under the lines of credit as of July 31, 2022 and 2021.  

 
Note 9 - Term debt 

 
 Term loans 

On June 26, 2014, the Association entered into a 15-year fixed rate bank loan with a bank in 
the amount of $30,000. The loan's interest rate is 3.63% and it matures in fiscal year 2030. 
The Association began making monthly principal and interest payments in August 2014 for the 
term of the loan. The funds were used to refinance certain interim indebtedness incurred to 
finance capital improvements.  

As a result of the COVID-19 outbreak, the Association entered into an agreement for a term 
loan on June 25, 2020 in the amount of $20,000. The loan’s interest rate is 2.5% and it 
matures in fiscal year 2028. The Association began making monthly principal and interest 
payments in August 2020.   
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As of July 31, 2022, the future loan principal payments by fiscal year are as follows: 

2023 3,611$              
2024 4,942                
2025 5,094                
2026 5,250                
2027 5,410                
2028 and thereafter 6,396                

   Total term loans 30,703              

Less deferred financing costs, net 128                   

   Term loans, net 30,575$            

 

 

Capital lease obligation 

The cost and accumulated amortization of equipment under capital leases were $867 and 
$263, respectively, as of July 31, 2022, and $867 and $121, respectively, as of July 31, 2021. 
As of July 31, 2022, the future minimum annual payments under capital leases are as follows: 

 

2023 95$        
2024 143        
2025 143        
2026 143        
2027 62          

Total minimum lease payments 586        

Less amount representing interest 12          

Present value of net minimum lease payments 574$      
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Note 10 - Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 

 
Restricted net assets consist of the following as of  July 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Grant restricted to School Age Services 18$              -$      
Grant restricted to Teen Center 33                
Satisfaction of program restrictions (51)              -        

Total net assets with donor restrictions -$                -$          

 
 

As of July 31, 2022, additional grant funds of $190 were received from Maryland State 
Department of Education program to support the Association’s School Age Services program 
in FY 2023.  The total amount included in deferred revenue at July 31, 2022, is $523.  This 
amount is included in deferred revenue, as opposed to the statement of activities, because the 
conditions associated with the grant have not been met. The contributions amount is subject 
to a right of return, in full or in part, if the Association furloughs and/or does not pay wages 
and benefits to School Age Services team members throughout the grant period that ends 
December 31, 2022. 

Grant funding approximating $33 was received from the Howard County Department of 
Community Resources and Services during the period ended July 31, 2022. The purpose of 
this grant was to support the programming at the Columbia Association Youth and Teen 
Center located at The Barn in the Oakland Mills Village Center. The grant money was used to 
pay costs incurred throughout the grant period that ended June 30, 2022. 

 

Note 11 - Retirement benefit plan  

Substantially all full-time and eligible part-time employees are covered by a defined 
contribution retirement benefit plan. Contributions through April 12, 2020, were based on 6% 
of eligible employees' salaries. Employees became fully vested after six years of service. 
However; effective April 13, 2020, due to the financial pressures from COVID-19, employer 
contributions were reduced to 3% and vested immediately. Effective January 2022, plan 
employer contributions were increased back to 6% with the previous vesting schedule. 
Expenses under this plan were $263 and $120 for the periods ended July 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 
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Note 12 - Commitments  

The Association leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases. Rental 
expense exclusive of these costs, was $485 and $540 for the periods ended July 31, 2022 
and 2021, respectively. 

 

The Association records rent expense using the straight-line method over the life of the lease 
terms, which differs from the amount of rent due under the terms of the leases, resulting in a 
deferred rent payable, of $856 and $712 which was included in accounts payable and accrued 
expenses as of July 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.   

 

As of July 31, 2022, the Association's total commitment for minimum annual rentals, exclusive 
of maintenance and other occupancy costs, under non-cancellable operating leases is:  

2023 1,259$         
2024 1,708           
2025 1,743           
2026 1,138           
2027 841              
2028 and thereafter 2,623           

Total 9,312$         

 
 

The lease for the headquarters building located on Hillside Court includes a rent abatement 
for the period September 1, 2015 to October 31, 2016 which is valued at $460. Accrued 
abatements of $209 and $245 were included in accounts payable and accrued expenses as of 
July 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.  

On March 9, 2021, the Association entered into an amendment to the deed of lease for 
headquarters office space that provided for a 50% abatement of the base rent due under the 
lease for the months of January through December 2021 and extended the lease for a period 
of two years. The lease termination date will be October 31, 2030. The gross amount of the 
rent abatement is $378.  Accrued abatements of $314 and $196 were included in accounts 
payable and accrued expenses as of July 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
 

Estimated rental costs and unamortized rent abatement and tenant improvement allowance 
related to the lease for Haven on the Lake, which expires August 31, 2025, as well as 
potential sublease rental income and related expenses through the expiration date were 
accrued as of April 30, 2021, due to the closing of operations on that date.      
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The revenue and expenses netted against the accrual were $1,719 and $497 as of July 31, 
2022 and 2021, respectively.  A sublease for the rental of the space through August 28, 2025 
was executed in May 2021.   
 

Note 13 - Postretirement health care 

The Association sponsors a defined postretirement medical benefit plan that covers both 
salaried and nonsalaried full-time employees and their spouses or surviving spouses. The 
postretirement health care plan is contributory. The Association will provide a maximum 
contribution of $2.5 annually to retired employees and their spouses for employees who have 
20 or more years of full-time service with the Association and have passed their 60th birthday. 
This contribution will decrease to a maximum of $1.5 when the retiree reaches age 65. This 
benefit terminates on the 10th anniversary of the benefit commencement date. The employee 
contributes the remainder of the health care cost.  

The following table sets forth the funded status of the Association's postretirement health care 
benefit plan reconciled to the accrued postretirement benefits cost recognized by the 
Association as of April 30: 
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2022 2021

Reconciliation of benefit obligations
Obligation at beginning of year 869$          829$    
Service cost 36              34        
Interest cost 24              23        
Actuarial loss -             -       
Plan amendments -             -       
Benefit payments (26)             (17)       

Obligation at end of year 903$          869$    

Amount not yet recognized in net periodic
postretirement benefit costs

Unrecognized prior service cost (credit) 37$            43$      
Unrecognized loss (gain) (140)           (140)     

Total amount not yet recognized in net 
      periodic postretirement benefit costs (103)$         (97)$     

Net periodic postretirement benefit costs 
include

Service cost 36$            34$      
Interest cost 24              23        
Amortization of net gain from prior periods (6)               (6)         
service cost 6                6          

Net periodic postretirement benefit costs 60$            57$      

 

 

The discount rate was 4.05% as of April 30, 2022 and 2021. The gross trend rate for health 
care coverage is 4.45% for all years. 
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Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the 
health care plans. A one percent change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the 
following effects as of April 30, 2022: 

  
1% increase 1% decrease

Effect on total service and interest cost
components of net periodic postretirement
health care benefit cost 8$              (7)$       

Effect on the health care component of the
accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation 109            (95)       

 
 

The following is a projection of benefit costs under the plan: 

2023 46$                         
2024 51                           
2025 62                           
2026 62                           
2027 62                           
2028 - 2030 221                         

504$                       

 

Note 14 - Significant estimates 

Reserve for general liability self-insurance 
Under its general liability self-insurance plan, the Association accrues the estimated expense 
of general liability claims based on claims filed subsequent to year-end and an additional 
amount for incurred, but not yet reported claims based on prior experience.   
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Accruals for such costs of $1,092 and $1,117 are included in accrued expenses as of July 31, 
2022 and 2021. Claim payments based on actual claims ultimately filed could differ materially 
from these estimates.  

 
Reserve for workers' compensation self-insurance 
Under its workers' compensation self-insurance plan, the Association accrues the estimated 
expense of workers' compensation claims based on claims filed subsequent to year-end and 
an additional amount for incurred, but not yet reported claims based on prior experience. 
Accruals for such costs of $2,117 and $1,745 are included in accrued expenses as of July 31, 
2022 and 2021, respectively. Claim payments based on actual claims ultimately filed could 
differ materially from these estimates. 

Note 15 - Concentration of credit risk 

The Association maintains its cash balance in several accounts in various banks. At times, 
these balances may exceed the federal insurance limits; however, the Association has not 
experienced any losses with respect to its bank balances in excess of government provided 
insurance. Management believes that no significant concentration of credit risk exists with 
respect to these cash balances as of July 31, 2022.  

Note 16 - Contingencies 

The Association is periodically a party to various lawsuits, claims and investigations, both 
actual and potential arising in the normal course of business. Based on internal review and 
advice of legal counsel, management believes the ultimate outcome of these matters, 
individually and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the Association's 
financial position or results of operations. 

 
Note 17 – COVID-19 impact 
 

The Association’s operations were negatively impacted in both fiscal years by the spread of 
the Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19), which was declared a worldwide pandemic by the 
World Health Organization on March 11, 2020. COVID-19 continues to impact various aspects 
of 2021 and 2022 operations and financial results, including community programs and 
services, and community operations and related activities. Management believes the 
Association is taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impacts. 
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September 15, 2022 

To: Columbia Association Board of Directors 
Lakey K. Boyd, President/CEO 

From: Susan Krabbe, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

Cc: Dan Burns, Vice President – Community Programs and Services 
Tim Pinel, Director of Marketing 
Lynn Schwartz, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

Re: Dashboard Metrics 

The dashboard for the first quarter of FY 2023 is attached. The table below describes the 
metrics, and notes the data source and date of the measurement.  

Metric Description/Purpose Data Source Date of Measurement 
1 Membership A/R 

Balances 
Monitors collections by tracking 
the trend in actual past due 
membership accounts 

Spectrum NG 
reports 

As of July 31, 2022 

2 CA People 
Productivity = 
personnel costs 
divided by non-
annual charge 
revenue 

Monitors the revenue production 
from CA’s investment in the work 
force 

Infor (Lawson) 
reports 

Actual data through 
July 31, 2022 

3 Free Cash Flow Monitors liquidity by tracking 
cash flow from operations less 
debt principal payments less 
paid capital expenditures 

Infor (Lawson) 
reports 

Actual data through 
July 31, 2022 

4 Net Assets to Debt 
Service (should be 
greater than 
1.25:1.00) 

Monitors CA’s financial condition 
in accordance with the terms of 
existing financing 

Infor (Lawson) 
reports 

Actual data through 
July 31, 2022 

5 Total Liabilities to 
Total Net Assets 
(should be less 
than 1.30:1.00) 

Monitors CA’s financial condition 
in accordance with the terms of 
existing financing 

Infor (Lawson) 
reports 

Actual audited data 
through April 30, 
2022 

6a 

6b 

Return on 
Investment – 
Buildings, Major 
Amenities 

Shows the cost of maintaining  
major facilities by comparing  
annual depreciation and repairs 
and maintenance costs to 
revenue and square footage 

Infor (Lawson) 
reports 

Actual data through 
July 31, 2022 

7 Net Membership 
Changes 

Monitors member 
retention/growth by major 
membership category over time 

Spectrum NG 
reports and sales 
data collected by 

Data as of July 31, 
2022. This is 
provided in the FY 23 
Q1 financial report. 

AGENDA ITEM 7(b)
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the Customer 
Care Center 

8 Market share for 
memberships and 
Columbia Cards 

Per Board request – to track 
memberships per housing unit 

Spectrum NG 
reports and 
Howard County 
data 

Actual membership 
data through July 31, 
2022. Housing data 
updated annually by 
Howard County. 

9 Marketing Cost 
per Membership 

To monitor marketing 
effectiveness  

Spectrum reports 
and marketing 
expenditure data 
tracked by staff 

Actual data as of 
April 30, 2022 

10 Top 50 Associated 
Words by Volume 

Indicates general 
satisfaction/dissatisfaction of 
program and facility users 

Qualtrics (formerly 
Clarabridge) 
surveys 

Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

11 Survey results for 
topics such as 
cleanliness, 
satisfaction with 
staff, facilities, 
classes, etc. 

Provides more specific feedback 
from program and facility users 
to drive improvements 

Qualtrics surveys Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

12 Net Promoter 
Score (“NPS”) – 
Overall CA (Sport 
& Fitness) 

Numerical value that indicates 
the likelihood a customer will 
refer the program to someone 
else – overall CA.  

Qualtrics surveys Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

13 Sentiment Numerical value that indicates 
survey responses as to “how 
hard is it to do business with CA” 

Qualtrics surveys Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

14  Effort Numerical value that measures 
how positive or negative the 
feedback is to understand how 
customers feel about something 

Qualtrics surveys Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

15 Emotional 
Intensity 

Numerical value that measures 
specific emotions and their 
corresponding strength to help 
CA understand how a customer 
feels about their experiences.  

Qualtrics surveys Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

16 NPS – for Fitness 
Clubs, Golf, 
Tennis, Aquatics 

See above – Fitness Clubs, Golf, 
Tennis, Aquatics individually 

Qualtrics surveys Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

17 Volume of Survey 
Results by 
Program or Facility 

Provides more context for other 
metrics by showing how many 
surveys received per program 

Qualtrics surveys Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

18 Takeaways from 
survey results 

Provides more context for other 
metrics by showing specific 
trends 

Qualtrics surveys Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

19 Main Areas of 
Conversation - 
High Level  

Volume of conversation topics at 
a high level 

Qualtrics surveys Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

20 Sexual Preference  Self-identified sexual preference Qualtrics surveys Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

21 Ethnicity Self-identified ethnicity  Qualtrics surveys Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

22 Gender Identity  Self-identified gender identity  Qualtrics surveys Responses as of  
July 31, 2022 

 



Dashboard - Metrics 1-6

METRIC 1

Membership A/R 
Balance

METRIC 2

People Productivity 
(personnel costs 

divided by non-annual 
charge revenue)

METRIC 3
Free Cash Flow                    
(cash flow from 

operations less debt 
repayments and capital 

expenditures)

 

METRIC 4
Net Assets to Debt 

Service                      
(debt service equals 

principal payments on 
long-term debt plus 

interest expense)

$114,215/$5,724

Actual 19.95

As of July 31, 2022 ($'000)

Audited - As of April 30, 2022

Should be greater than 1.25 to 1.00 on an annual basis

121.0%

92.7%

120.5%

80.7%

112.1%

50.0%

70.0%

90.0%

110.0%

130.0%

Q1 FY22 Q2 FY22 Q3 FY22 Q4 FY22 Q1 FY23

$1,563 

($7,501)
($5,180)

($1,801)

$6,938 

$11,193 

$525 

($10,000)

($5,000)

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Projected

0.00 5.00 10.00 15.00 20.00 25.00

$30 

$4 $2 $7 

$37 

$10 $5 $11 

$34 

$7 $3 

$27 $29 

$5 $2 
$20 

$57 

$8 $3 
$16 

$0

$50

$100

Total A/R Over 60 Days Over 90 Days Write-offs

Q1 FY22 Q2 FY22 Q3 FY22 Q4 FY22 Q1 FY23

# of Accts: 278  318  320    274   448               61   129    118   85    93                 28     64     59    45     20            42    87   190  159  121 

Note: Dollars in Thousands



Dashboard - Metrics 1-6
As of July 31, 2022 ($'000)

METRIC 5

Total Liabilities to Total 
Net Assets

$54,421/$114,215

Actual .48

METRIC 6a

Depreciation and 
Repairs & Maintenance 

Expense as a % of 
Revenue

METRIC 6b

Depreciation and 
Repairs & Maintenance 

Expense per Square 
Foot

 Audited - As of April 30, 2022

Should be less than 1.30 to 1.00 on an annual basis
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Advertising Effectiveness Report FY21Q2-FY23 Q1
New Membership Acquisition 
Goal: $150-$250 marketing cost per new membership

                                                      FY21 Q2        FY21 Q3          FY21 Q4         FY22 Q1         FY22 Q2        FY22 Q3          FY22 Q4        FY23 Q1

Total Investment                        $37,813         $65,989         $161,260        $76,347          $54,106        $149,219         $111,582       $109,410
Total Lead Page Views                    39,313           95,144            104,375          94,041            93,928           77,022             85,733           73,117
Total Leads (Forms and Calls)1           494               1,116               1,500              4,225              2,163            1,595               1,903             3,647
New Memberships                                                  
CA Fit&Play                                       78                   89                   213                 742                 199                182                  389                632
Other Memberships                         363                 380                  741               2,374                633                578                  775               1,690
Total New Memberships                  441                 469                  954               3,116                832                760                 1,164             2,322
Cost of New Membership 
Acquisition                                                                   

                                      100%            $86               $141                $169                $25                 $65               $196                 $96                $47
                                         90%            $95               $156                $188                $27                 $72               $218                $107               $52
                                         80%           $107              $176                $211                $31                 $81               $245                $120               $59
                                         70%           $122              $201                $241                $35                 $93               $280                $137               $67
                                         60%           $143              $235                $282                $41                $108              $327                $160               $79

Average Cost of  
New Membership
Acquisition                                              
                                      100%                                                        $146                                                                                      $99                   
                                         90%                                                      $162                                                                                     $110                  
                                         80%                                                      $182                                                                                     $124                  
                                         70%                                                      $208                                                                                     $142                  
                                         60%                                                      $243                                                                                     $166                  
1 Total leads include form submissions and phone calls (added in FY22 Q1). 

Membership Market Share (CA residents only) 

FY 2019-FY 2023

           
Fiscal Year

   2019                  4,159                 11,791               37,006                43.1%                 31.9%
   2020                 4,561                 11,576               37,006                43.6%                 31.3%
   2021                 4,372                  7,341                 37,006                31.7%                 19.8%
   2022                 4,977                  9,247                 37,062                38.4%                 25.0%
 2023 Q1               5,501                 10,267               37,062                42.5%                 27.7%          

Columbia
Cards 
A

Columbia
Resident

Membership
B

CA 
Residential
Units
C

Market Share 
(Including

Columbia Cards)
D=(A+B)/C

Market Share 
(Excluding

Columbia Cards)
E=B/C

1. “Columbia Resident Membership” (column B) assumes 
    only one membership per household. 

2.  Market share percentages uses Columbia housing units as 
    the unit of measure, including housing units of employees. 
    This information is updated by the Howard County 
    Department of Planning and Zoning.

3.  “Columbia Resident Membership” (column B) does not 
    include employee memberships. 

4. The change in residential units reflects changes in how built 
    and unbuilt units are reported in Howard County datasets.



Advertising Tactics 
Tactics completed in FY23 Q1

Social Media
- Paid advertising on Facebook/Instagram

Online/Digital
- Pay-per-click ads (Google paid search)

- Digital banner ads through Google Display Network



Top 50 Associated Words by Volume

CLUB --> ATHLETIC
GYM --> COLUMBIA

CENTER --> SWIM
FRIENDLY --> VERYSTAFF --> FRIENDLY

ASSOCIATION --> COLUMBIACLUB --> SUPREME SPORT
REMEMBER --> NAME

ROOM --> LOCKER

JOB --> GREAT

POOL --> OUTDOOR
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N
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WELCOME --> VERY

CLASS --> FITNESS
FITNESS --> AQUAFOREST --> STEVENS
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MEMBER --> CA

RINK --> ICE
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TVERY --> ALWAYSEXPERIENCE --> GREAT

G
LE

N
 --

> 
H

O
BB

IT

M
AK

E 
-->

 F
U

N

NICE --> VERY

OFFER --> CLASS SW
IM

 --
> 

C
O

LU
M

BI
A

CLUB --> TENNIS

EXPENSIVE --> TOO
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 --
> 
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GUARD --> LIFE

POOL --> FOREST

SPACE --> KID

LANE --> LAP

TIME --> TEE

n= 664

Survey Metrics

Calculation Current quarter Same period last year Δ Value

CAR: Columbia Association Satisfac 4.3 4.3 (0.0) 

CAR: Facilities Cleanliness 4.3 4.4 (0.1) 

CAR: Facilities Quality 4.2 4.3 (0.1) 

CAR: Programs/Classes Satisfactio 2.8 3.3 (0.6) 

CAR: Staff Satisfaction 4.5 4.5 (0.0) 

n= 938

Overall CA
NPS

Sentiment

Metric : CA Overall NPS

Current quarter

41.6
▼ -1.0

Previous period

42.7
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n= 938

Metric : CA Overall Sentiment

Current quarter

0.27
▼ -0.05
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Effort Emotional
Intensity

Fitness Center
NPS

Golf NPS

Metric : Effort

Current quarter

-1.22
▲ 0.02

Previous period

-1.25
n= 938

Metric : Emotional Intensity

Current quarter

3.04
▲ 0.07

Previous period

2.97
n= 938

Fitness Center NPS

Current quarter
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▼ -6.3

Previous period
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Golf NPS
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Tennis NPS Aquatics NPS

Tennis NPS
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Aquatics NPS

Current quarter

34.9
▼ -10.8

Previous period
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CA Operational Dashboard - Board v2
EXPORTED BY:Dan Burns EXPORTED ON:09/09/2022 4:29 PM UTC-04:00

Source Id  is columbia association - cas columbia association survey, customerville / Date Range  Current quarter



Volume by Region
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Takeaways:

NPS: Overall NPS was 41.6. This is down slightly from our April 2022 survey score of 42.7.

NPS Drivers: We saw strong surges in NPS for Golf and Tennis, while Aquatics fell back slightly. Overall, the NPS score was driven up by great staff and facilities. The biggest negative
driver was cleanliness across most facilities. Many respondents indicated that we had set a high bar for cleanliness during the peak of the pandemic but have not been consistent in
maintaining it indoor and at the outdoor pools, the volume of users created cleanliness issues.

Gender: 55% of our respondents for this survey identified as female and offered nearly equal amounts of positive and negative feedback on Look/Feel/Condition and Cleanliness.

Age: Those under 35 spoke most about Programs/Class/Services with Staff as number two, while those over 35 spoke most about Staff with Programs/Class/Services as number two.
Both groups had extremely positive sentiment when speaking about staff, but were more neutral when discussing Programs/Class/Services.

Perception: Sentiment, Effort and Emotional Intensity all saw small positive increase but were largely static to the previous quarter. 
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Bar by Gender Identity
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This format for the President’s Report for Columbia Association is striving to distill a lot of work into a quickly digestible format that is an 
easy-to-understand snapshot of a complex community organization. Included are key points about what we are busy doing at CA to 
better serve Columbia in a wide variety of ways, a celebration of our CA points of pride, and the sharing of some of the content that is 
shaping CA’s President/CEO’s perspective.  

From Lakey Boyd’s Desk: 

Looking Forward 

“Courage doesn't always roar. Sometimes courage is the quiet voice at the end of the day 
saying 'I will try again tomorrow.’'”  - Mary Anne Radmacher 

Professional Reading 

High-Performing Teams Don’t Leave Relationships to Chance.  Harvard Business Review, 
Ron Friedman, September 14, 2022. 

Personal Reading 

Braving the Wilderness.  Brene’ Brown, 2017. 

Visiting the Archives 

“The purposes of the Association are two-fold:  1. To provide professional management of 
its properties and programs, making available to you the highest quality of services and 
amenities; 2. To serve as a channel for the energy and resources of its members in 
building a new quality of community life. 

-- Columbia Today brochure, 1968 

AGENDA TOPIC 8(a)
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Last 2 Months at CA:  
 Successfully launched our Change in Columbia event on July 26 at the Slayton House. There were more than 120 participants

online and in person. The topic for this session was development and panelists included CA's Jessica Bellah, HoCo By
Design's Amy Gowen and was moderated by Lakey Boyd.

 The Communications team created and disseminated a survey, engaging 300 respondents on their priorities for CA and the
community as the Board of Directors begins the budget process for the upcoming fiscal year. More than half of those
participants are engaging with this process for the first time.

 Completed the replacement of The North Slope Boardwalk in Long Reach.
 Completed two non-native invasive plant removals in Longfellow with Harpers Choice Cares.
 Set up the Community Development and Real Estate Services webpage and created an online application process for the

resident discount survey program and access to CA property request forms improving efficiency and customer service
interface.

 Columbia Association Art Center participated in the Long Reach Independent Film and Arts Festival (IFAF) with a Paint & Sip
rental on July 29.

 Columbia Association Art Center participated in a family art activity at the Aquatics Coral Reef event at MacGill Commons pool
on July 23 with more than 350 children and adults creating art projects.

 The Kids Triathlon for kids 7-15 had over 350 kids participate.
 The CNSL All City Swim Meet was held on July 29th & 30th at Phelps Luck pool. 1, 149 swimmers competed in 77 events

over the 3 sessions.
 The CA Fitness & Wellness Team kicked off Columbia Moves with CA. These free community movement experiences take

place directly in CA neighborhoods. Our first three sessions took place on Saturdays in August.
 Fairway Hills hosted the Annual First Tee Fundraiser at Fairway Hills on July 29th and raised $30,000 to support the First Tee.
 IEMP's Celebrating Columbia Sister Cities event was held on August 14. We had three performing groups representing three

of the five sister cities, including an African drum circle, Spanish guitar, and Chinese musical/dance performances.
 CA hosted the USTA 40+ Sectional Tournament at Wilde Lake and Owen Brown on August 26-29. More than 1,000 players

from the Mid-Atlantic region competed in it.
 CA's Assistant Director of Community Programs and Services, Anish Manrai was invited to participate on a national panel of

five operators from across the country hosted by Club Solutions Magazine as part of their "Thought Leaders Series" on
Navigating the Pickleball Craze in the US.

 The ice rink had its annual reopening on Monday, August 15. The day began at 6am with figure skaters followed by 81
participants in the Learn To Skate program, public skating and Howard Huskies hockey camp.

 The Customer Care team has formally launched enrollment in CA Points while maintaining regular service. This year the
program has grown from 14 to 20 schools, and includes every middle school and high school in Columbia. The team has
attended, or will be attending, seven back to school events to promote the program.

 Substantial updates have been deployed on the CA website as part of the overhaul project. In the past month, the CA blog,
Membership section and Open Space sections have seen major improvements in design and content to serve the community
better and highlight important parts of the organization.
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 Completed the Prepare for Success School Donation Drive which resulted in at least 200 backpacks (from our supplies alone)
that were filled with supplies for Howard County students in need

 Completed the Columbia Association/Community Action Council of Howard County Summer Canned Food Drive. After we
weighed our contributions, our CA Staff was able to donate a total of 169 pounds of food. All of which will go to help Howard
County residents in need.

 CA's budget system is prepped and ready to go for the preparation of the FY24 operating and capital budgets.
 First quarter FY23 financial results were finalized and reported.
 We worked with a benefits broker to analyze our benefits offerings through a DEI lens which will assist in decision-making for

future offerings.

Next Month at CA: 
 Lakefront Live programming will continue through October.
 Open Space will complete Symphony Woods and Wilde Lake turf renovations, including aerification, seeding, and fertilization

of facility grounds.
 Complete all Village & Community Association facility inspections.
 Complete designs for an EV charging station at the Fairway Hills Golf Clubhouse and a solar photovoltaic system at the

Supreme Sports Club.
 Closing up pools safely as all the Aquatics Team Members return to college and high school sports.
 Columbia Association Art Center Galleries will host the Wilde Reading Series beginning September 13. The monthly series

features local authors and poets who share their latest published works, as well as an open mic segment open to teens and
adults.

 The Columbia MD Archives staff will be working on an exhibit for the Hobbit's Glen Golf Course. This exhibit will explore the
history of Fairway Hills and Hobbit's Glen golf courses and their communities through collection material found in the archives.

 On September 12th and 14th Erin Berry, CA’s Archivist will be co-teaching at Howard Community College (HCC) for the
Rouse Scholars on the history and community of Columbia while encouraging the students to think critically on how the past
influenced and changed the present.

 Beginning late August, Supreme will have an extended arena closure and Kidspace painting project. The Supreme arena will
close for about 5 weeks for painting, new LED lights and in-depth floor refinishing. As part of the extensive floor refinishing, we
will be adding pickleball lines to allow members to enjoy open gym pickleball (in addition to scheduled times for basketball,
volleyball and Fun & Games.) Kidspace will also be repainted in CA’s new Kidspace colors.

 Convert the Dog Park registration process to digital from paper.

 HR is planning for Compliance Refresher Training for CA staff and coordinating all team member DEI mandatory training that
will take place in October by the Howard County Office of Human Rights.

 In partnership with Community Programs & Services, CA IT will be progressing through Phase 1 of the Customer Relationship
Management Modernization project.

 Accounting will be assisting managers and team members across the organization who are involved in the development of the
FY24 budget.
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Challenges CA is Addressing: 
 We continue to deal with the challenges of staffing, vendor/contractor capacity and/or responsiveness, and inflation.

CA Departments’ Points of Pride: 
 Lakefront Live’s September headline concert with Chopteeth Afrofunk Big Band was largest attendance yet.
 In a very hot and unusually dry summer, the Aquatics team completed another safe summer by serving 397,000 visitors

without a major incident. This is a testament to the team's commitment to safety and the training they conduct throughout the
summer.

 The Design and Production team completed an engaging design for Open Space’s new Electric Vehicle and is assisting in
producing the wrap and applying it to the vehicle.

 Collaborative efforts with multiple teams in conjunction with Communications team has kickstarted new, exciting initiatives and
ways for us to connect with our community.

 Winning Howard County’s Local Employer’s Inclusive Workplace Award!



INNER ARBOR TRUST, INC.

S E P T E M B E R  2 0 2 2  R E P O R T
PRESENTED TO THE  COLUMBIA ASSOCIATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS



As we approach fall 2022, the Trust is
navigating great change as well as
one of the most challenging years in
its history as we establish the "new
normal" post-Covid.  Major supply
chain, labor shortage, and other
challenges occurred. However,
through challenges come new
opportunities.  2022 was a year of
trying new things, and learning what
still works from "pre-pandemic"
times, as well as experimenting and
taking risks to think outside the box. 
 While certain challenges are
expected to dissipate over time -
including scheduling challenges
faced in 2022 and supply chain /
labor issues, other challenges such as
climate change will continue to
intensify.

In September, the Trust is still
focused on producing performances
and events.  Our focus is
programming that empowers the
community while also participating
as a part of Downtown Columbia.

As we shift to off-season, staff focus
turns to capital improvements. 
 Specifically, the Trust is working
closely with our funders at the State
and County level to plan and execute
the priorities set by the Trust Board
after review of the community driven
concept plan.

In addition, the Trust is working to
identify its focuses for the upcoming
program year.

FROM THE INNER ARBOR TRUST



CONSERVATION LANDSCAPING

The Trust, in partnership with CA, is the steward of Symphony Woods and acts to
preserve, protect, and enhance Merriweather Park at Symphony Woods in
accordance with the concept plan.  The Trust, in partnership with Howard EcoWorks,
completed installing the second phase of conservation landscaping funded by a
Chesapeake Bay Trust grant.  While the project phase for conservation landscaping
completed successfully, significant labor shortages has delayed certain tree planting
until later in the year.

The Trust plans to continue the installation and upgrades of conservation
landscaping, as well as tree planting, annually as part of its overall plan for
Symphony Woods.

 



RECENT AND UPCOMING EVENTS

8/19 Columbia Big Band (Free)

8/28 1-2-3 Andres (Free)

8/28 Concert for the Human Family

(Free)

9/18 Classics at the Chrysalis (Free)

9/23 Lavenia Nesmith (Free)

10/8 Hops and Harvest

10/9 Howard County PRIDE (Free)

10/22 Out of Darkness Walk



SDP 14-073 was the original SDP for the Inner Arbor Trust / Merriweather Park at Symphony
Woods plan submitted to Howard County in 2014.  This SDP is the basis for all improvements in
Symphony Woods.  Notably, the SDP was approved in an atypical manner, creating additional
requirements or phasing.

The final SDP redline was approved on September 15, 2022.

W H A T  I S  S D P  1 4 - 0 7 3 ?

REDLINE OF SDP 14-073 AND NEXT
STEPS TOWARDS DPZ APPROVALS

SDP 14-073 was out of date, and needed to be updated.  The Trust was faced with the choice of
either engaging in piecemeal updates or "redlining" the document extensively to try and achieve
the community-driven approved plan, or to update SDP 14-073 to reflect the built reality, then
begin the SDP process over, engaging in full public input.  The Trust decided to work cohesively and
with full transparency to the public and elected to move forward by submitting a new SDP or SDPs
to achieve the plan.

W H Y  D I D  S D P  1 4 - 0 7 3  N E E D  T O  B E  C H A N G E D ?   

The Trust is committed to engaging in a full public process for the next SDP(s) for Symphony
Woods. The next step will begin in early 2023 with public review.  We anticipate the first SDP will
contain the colonnade. 

W H A T  A R E  T H E  N E X T  S T E P S ?


